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TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the charitable company for the year | September
2022 io 31 August 2023. The annual. repont serves the purposes of both a trustees' report, and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

Northern Education Trust (NET) was formed in 2012. In cleven years it has grown from a single academy (o ten primary academies and twelve secondary
academics as at. 31 August 2023 which are located in three areas:

i North East England conurbations of Tyne-Wear and Tees Valley
2. Yorkshire conurbations of the Aire-Calder-Dearne Valleys
3. Bolton-Manchester conurbation

‘The map below outlines the location of the trust’s academies and also includes the addition of a new academy that transferred into the trust as at Ist
Scptember 2022, this is Hetton Academy. In addition to this, Farringdon Community Academy has also been included from Ist September 2023,

Primary Academies

Secondary Academias

1. Abtey Park Primary Academy (APA)
2. Badger Hill Pimary Academy (BHA)

11. The Biyth Academy (TBA)
12, Oy¥= House Acsdemy (DHA)
3. The Ferns Primary Academy (TFA) 13. Farringdon C ity Acadamy (FCA)

!

4. F ick Mattrass Primary Academy (FNA)

14, Frasbreugh Academy (FA)

5. Hition Primsry Academy (HA}

8. Merlin Top Primary Academy (MTA)

7. KMount Pelien Primary Acsdemy (RPA)
8. Norton Primary Academy (NA)

8. The Osk Treae Primary Academy (OTA)
10. Whitecliffe Primary Academy (WA)

15, The Grangefield Academy (TGA)
16. Hatton Academy (HTA)

17. Kearsley Acasdenty (KA)

18. Kirk Batk Academy (KBA)

19. Manor Community Acad=my (MCA)
20. North Shora Acsdamy (NSA)

21, Red Housa Academy (RHA)

22. Thoep Acsderay (TA)

23. Walbottle Academy (WBA)
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Going forward the trust wishes to work with schools and trusts who have a similar ethos of placing children at the forefront of all decision making, The
trust will not sponsor schools where key stakeholders and the local community are not supportive of the irust’s vision and potential sponsorship. Ideally,
growth will only be considered in the Norih East of England to enable the trust to make the most efficient and cffective use of current resources and.
furiher improve the outcomes and life chances of children,

Trustees have discussed and considered a growth strategy for the trust which in summary aims to increasc the number of academics in the areas outlined,
whilst scaling up without .compromising quality. Given the geographical challenges of sharing resources across the trust, in deciding about growth at
either phase, trustees have constdered school improvement and corporafe capacity alongside the geographical cluster and detailed due diligence
undcrtaken by directors, executive team members and trust advisors.

"The trust has a combined pupil capacity of 17,155 and 14,668 on rol! at its primary and secondary academices in the schoo! census dated October 2022.
Student numbers have risen over the medium term and the rapidly improving performance of academics means an increase in student numbers arc
forecast across the trust.

In 2017/18 the new CEQ, with the support of trustees, introduced a new vision, values and shortened iag-line of “Outcomes Focused, Child Centred”.
Over the last six academic years, NET has continucd (0 implement the NORTHERN model of school improvement and now has further capacity, skill
and expertisc to plan and deliver greater rapid school improvement in cven the most challenging of contexts, Inclusivily is embedded in the NORTHERN
model with mechanisms lo support the most vulnerable child to succeed and overcome barriers to Ieaming. The impact of the new vision and
developments in school improvement is evidenced in the 2023 resulis and Ofsted judgements across both primary and secondary phases. All academies
inspected by Ofsted are nowjudged as good or outstanding, as outlined in the table below (with previous judgements shown as a comparative)

Previous judgement | Current judgement

Primary Academies

Hilton Primary Academy

Fraederick Nattrass Primary Academy

The Fems Primary Academy
/hiteciiffe Primary Academy

Badger Hill Primary Academy

Abbey Park Primary Academy

Merlin Top Primary Academy

The Oak Treg Primary Acadamy

Norton Primary Academy

Mount Pellon Primary Academy 2

Secondary Academies

Dyke House Academy
Grangefield Academy
North Shore Academy
Kearsley Academy
Kirk Balk Academy
Manor Community Academy
Thorp Academy

Blyth Academy

Red House Academy
Freebrough Academy
Walbottle Academy
Hetton Academy
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Not inspected

Key:

1. Outstanding

2, Good

3. Requires Improvement
4. Inadeq

Please note that Hettoir Academy has not been inspecied as a Northern Education Trust academy.
Structure, Governunce and Management

Constitution

NET is a company limited by guaranice (incorporated in June 2010) and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s. memorandum and -articles of
assoviation (1% April 2020) arc the primary goveming documenis of the trust, The NET trusiees are also the dircctors of the charitable company for the
purposcs of company law. The charitable company is known as Northern Edueation Trust.

Mentbers® Liability

Each member of the chariiable company undertakes to contribute io the assels of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while ihey are
a member, or within one year afic: they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not execeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted
beflore they ceased 1o be a member.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONT[N UED)
-FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

“frustees Indemnitics i ) -
Subject 10 the provision of the Companies Act 2006, every trustee and officer is indemnificd against any liability incurred by them in their capacity in
defending any proceedings whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in which.they are acquitied or in. connection with any
application in which relief is granted to them by the court from lisbility for nesligence, default, breach of duly or breach of trust in relation ta the affairs
- of Northérn Education Trust, The insurance purchaséd for the trust provides cover up to £5 millign on an annuat aggregate limit basis.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees
The types of trustees and their recruitment; term and appoiniment is set out within the Articles of Assocuahon and Schenie of Dclegallon, The menibers of
‘the trust comprise of,

M Sanders
A Kilburn
"C Roberis
G Shearer-
B Trafford

NEBLN=-

The majority of members should noi also be trustecs, The Members may appoint up (o cleven trustees thiough such process as they may deteriine,

“Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
Durmg the year the trust has. continued 1o undertake a comprehensive review of its governance structuré, membership to the board {and sub-committees)
and its’ rccrunmc.m' and commitment to continuously develop trustces. Using the DIE best practice documcnts (Governance Handbook 2019 and
Competency Framework for Governance 2017) a sclt-assessmient has previously been developed that all trustees have completed and now forms part of
. any new trustee induction, A training programme was developed and implemented in carly 2021 to support and develop trustees going forward. This is
supported by the NET Staff College. NET Staff College offers a range of high quality leadership and teaching and learning CPD programmes and courses
dcross the North of England fncluding providing bespoke school CPD packages.

A néw trustec handbook and academy council rtprtxnlalwe handbook has been devised to ensure that all thase appomlcd to gm'cm.mcc, positions
tccuvc copies of relevant policies, procedures, training, and relevant information about the role they holil and the accountability they have, They also
recéive the appropriate minutes, financial statements and other key documents they require to undertake their role effectively as trustecs.

Trustecs as part of the govemance review recognised the need fo further strengthén the links between the frust board and its sub-commiltees and ¢ach
local academy council. An additional link role has been introduced for Information Governance at trust board level only, This cnables ‘the Senior
Information Risk Ovimer (SIRO) who chairs the. Information Governance Steering Group (IGSG) to report dircctly to the Chair of ARC who has taken on
this new link role,

Regularity and HR link roles are retained ot trusi board Ievel only based on the terns of referenci for the board and its sub-committeds.

Standards, Safeguarding/Prevent, SEND, Health and  Safcty and Estates, Carcers and information Governance link roles continue to be established at
both board and wcademy council level. Training is facilitated specifically around thése roles and annual conferences take place focusing on slalulory
requirements and. sector best praclice

'Org.mwmoml Structure
The governance structure. of the trust is. on two levels: The trust board.and its subcommittéés (includitig Lacal Academy Couneils).

‘fhe trust board is responsible for the steategic decision making of the trust. The trust, board ol dircctors is responsible for ensuring that high standards of
educational outcumes for students and corporate governance are: maintained. It exereises its powers and functions by addrcssmg such matlers as school
improvement, safeguarding, governance, pohcy and strategy developmeni, ﬁnanclai reporting and planning, imonitoring and reviewing all areas. of
performance and making longer-ierm decisions about the dm.clmn of lhe Lrust and senior slaﬂ' appomlmunﬁs

The Trust Bourd’s Respansibilities are:

s * Steategic leadership; the hoard defines the trust vision for high quality and inclusive education in line with iis charitable abjectives. 1t
establishes and fosters the trust’s culture and sets and champions the irust strategy including dt.lunmnmf' what govemance: functions arc
delegated to the local academy council

. Accounlablhly and asswance; the board has robust effective oversight of the opcr.mcms‘ and performance; mcludmg ihe provision of
‘education, pup:l welfare, ovur%enm. and ensuring appropriate use of funding and eMective financial performance and keeping the estate.
safe and well maintained

«  Engagement: the board has simtegic: aversight of relationships. with stakeholders, The hourd involves parents, schools and communities so
that decision-making is supporied by meaningful cng:lgcmcnl

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Ranuneration of Key Management Personnel

The trust has determined fts key management personnet as: the members of the trust executive. team led by its chiel executive. The trust exceutive team
have awthority and responsibility for (dirccily or indireaily) planning, directing and controlling the day to day activities ol the trust, The members of this.
team.are. shown below, '

L. R'Tarn CBE - Chiel Eixecutive Officer-and Accounting Officer
2, JFWilson Deputy Chiel Excewtive Officer
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NO ‘ RN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company llmlted by guarantee)

Y RUSTEES‘ REPORT (CONTINUED)
-FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31. AUGUST 2023

3. G Edmunds ' Chu.f Opcralmg (.md Financial) OIT cer and Trust Sccruary (séconded 2]/02/2023)
4, ") Mitchell Acting Chief Operating Officer and Trust Sccretary (appointed 2[/02!‘2023)
5, Glee Acting Chicf Financial Officer (appdinted 21/02/2023)
*6.  AlJordon Senior Exccutive Principal
7. *MRobson . Scnior Executive Principal
8. D Murphy :Scmor llxeculwe l’nnupal

During the year, the Chief Qperating, and Financial Officer was offered a secondmeni to another trust: as acting Chicef Exccutive. The arrangeinent allowed
+ for the. Deputy Chicl Operating Officer to.act as the Chief Operating Officer and Trust Scx.rclary and the Director of Finance and Procurement lo act as
- the Chief Financiat Officer, The Director of Finance and Procurcment underwent a figorous interviéw process with the Senior Management Team and thc

chair'of the Audil and Risk Committce io confirm suitability for the role agamst the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook.

'Rcmuncmmn of key managenient. pcrsonnol is considered and dunrmmcd by the Trust board. The trust cénlinucs in part to manage llu. rcmun(.rdlmn of
key management_personncl usmg, salary benchmarking, This bcnchmarkmg considers trusts both locally .and nationally based on their similar size,
-educational pcrform:mcc and/or financial perfonmance.-Trustees received at both audit and risk commitice and trusi board reports regarding remuneration..
Trustees continuc to- scck assurance in ihe remuncrauon of key managément personnel and arc committed 10 a similar cxercise once 2022/23 nudmd
finiancial, slalcmcnls are pubhshcd

The above {ist. has been expanded from previaus y vears lo include ‘the. addition of the Senior Executive Punc:pal rolc and the increase in‘cost of the Key
Mamgcmcnl Pcrsonncl wﬂl bc rcﬂccted innote 9,

Trade Union l'aullty llmc

Under the provision of the trade union (l‘amhty Time Pnbhcahon Reéquiremenis) Regulations 2017; where an academy trusi has more than 49 full time
- equivalent employces throughout dny 7 months \vuhm the reporting period, it must include information included in schedule 2 of the Regulallons The
Informatian o bé published consisis ‘of four tables covering: !

'l}elévant union official§

’ Number of cmployces who were relevant union officials during the Full time cquivalent employee number,
_jrelévanit pcrmd (Head count) )
15 14.48

Percentage of fime spent on facility time

Percentage of working hours spent on facility time - Number of emplovees
0% 4

1-50% 11

51%-99% 4]

100% 10

Percentage of puy bill spent on Facility @iine

Provide the total cost of facilily time £36,348.05
Total. pay bill _ 1 £70.051,944
) P..rccnlau, of pay spent on facnhlv time 0.05%

.

Paid irn'du union activitics

| Peccentage of total paid facility time hours spent on paid. TU. acfivilies. 10.10% 1 .

Retated I’Jrhes and Other Coninected Charities and Organisations

NET was Tormed in June 2012 and %ponsorcd by’ Northern Education Assocmlc: (NIEA)Y ot the time, The irust 3$ responsible and accountable for (Iu:
pufommncc of its academics and has a funding agreement with the ESFA with further supplemental funding agreements or cach academy it then
sponsars. With effect from the 315 Augusi 2014 (herc continued to be no related party transactions between NE’I “and NEA. In 2020, the founder of NEA
and founder and.chair ol’ NET resigned ﬁum the lru;( board.and as a member; and a diew chair with ng association to NEA taok up the role.

Dunng the year Gareth rdmund» Chicl Operating and Financial Offiicer, was given the opporiunily ofa secondinent to Harbour Learning Trus! as (‘hn,f
Exéeutive and Accounting Officer, The required 'ullhonsauom for this ‘arrangement were: oblained - from thc DFE and the wcondmcnt hegan 2ist
F cbruary 2023 and continued for the rcslof the financial year,

'Rclatétl Party Tasacliond involving triistees afé ¢ st out.in ot 30..

btreamlmcd l:.nerg) and Carbin Repornnu .
Plcasc sex:page 1§ within the Steatcgic l{cpnn for dxsclosurus in conncetion with. Streambined Encigy and Carbon Reportiiig,

* Engageme twith E pt ;»‘cgs(ln ludiug Disabled Persons)
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST:
(A company limited by guaranteg),

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Nortlier Education Trust récognises the importance of efféctive communication. with all key stakcholders, The trust board: has approved a
communication sirategy which identifics key stakcholders and shares the continually improving performance, successes and the trust vision and values.
This strategy enables stafT to focus on the core business of educating. the children and young peoplc the trust scrves, thereby improving their life chanees,
Al a strategic levél, the Chiel Executive holds executive tcam meetings with senior leaders and in addition the Députy Chief Executive OfTi¢ icer holds
primary executive teamn meetings, At an acadeniy level, senior Icadcrshlp team meclings, staff’ bncl"ng,s and. leaming and performance sessions are held
weekly. Acadcmy nétwork meetings are held regularly \\'hc:m senior leaders représenting cvéry ncndgmy and members of the corporate team méet to share
best practice and update on dcvelopmcnls in‘their area. Performance data on student outcomes is shared, discussed and challenged at these meetings.

“The trust works closcly withi recognised tradc unions and the. Joint Consultative Committee (JCC) meets at feast termly, The Chicf Executive chairs this

mecting and changes to working practices are discussed and negotiated. A scparate policy meeting is held with Human Resources to consult on riew and.*
‘revised HR policies. A recognition agreement, signed by unions and the trust, eutlines the principles under which consultation and negoliation will take

place, A numbet of initiatives havé been implemented to reduce workload for teaching staff, and union representatives often use NET as an example of

best. practice nationally.

NET rt.c'o’g:iises respects and values diversity in the workforce and is commiltéd fo promoting and achiceving cquality of opportunity. How this is
achicved is anticulated in the trust cqualuy policy, In addition, the Recruitment and Sclection Policy outlines how (he trust adheres to the Equality Act,

ensuring all relevant equal -opportunitics legislation is adhered to and that all applicants and appointees arc hot discriminatcd against on the grounds of
any protected charadieristic, Reasonable adjustments ate put in place to- support polential candidales through the recruitment process and into
emplayment. Support. for employees who expericnce health ¢oncerns 1§ available via the Employee Assist Programme and Occupational Health.

A Workload Action Group has been set up chaired by different members of tht executive. team,'to consider the workload of different groups of support
staff, and implement practical solutions where possible. Staff groups have been invited to this meeting and sent q\muonnmm to complete to inforni the

._process, Actions ng,rccd by the exccutive as 4 result of this work are fed back to the staff involved. As a result of this, improved workload has. béen
recognised by the unions in hing, data ag wand. business managers whilst the Trust continues Lo review otlier roles,

SiafT newsletters are also circulaied termly, articulating trust develapments, new inttiatives, and good news storics. A CEQ letter is also issued at the end
of each term, thanking staff for their hard work and updating them on gencral issucs.

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in a Business Relationship with the Trust

The trust continues to work and communicaté with supplicrs to cnsure a strong and sustainable relationship is built, The trust has engaged with supplicts

throughout the year i the form of coniinuous verbal communications and letters outlining the trust stanée on purchase orders, fraid. awareness and

Modem Slavery, keeping suppliers informed of policy changes and changes in systems, processes and financial regulations. As a result of this, the Trust

continues o enjoy strong working relationships with iis supplicrs. The Trust has strengthened its controls around purchase orders and new supplice
- checks as a result of this reducing the risk of fraud.

The sole of the trust procurement and contracts manager and the implenientation of E-Delta, a’corporate system {o manage: procurement, allows for
communicaiion and iransparency wiih supphus throughout the tender processes. Further o lh:s the procurement and contract managers role. is to ensure
greater probity, engage with suppliers, deliver further value for money and contract manage where appropriate.

In most instances, the trust defines its commercial customer base ss.those that use its fettings facilities. The trust has implemented a school hire system
that allows customers. to book facihiies anline and pay-for the hire all in one transaction, simplifying the management. of the operation, ‘The trust can

¢ afe 1o its customers through the system and there a links to this through the trust website,

“The trust development plan has a specific target related to community and stakeholder engagement. A budget of £1,000 per academy has been created
specifically for use for community engagement. The academy council determine how best 1o use the furids o ¢éngage wilh their tocal community.

The stakchalder survey mentioned above which is sent to stafl s also issued to. students, with quéstions differentiated for different age groups in the
primary and secondary phase. For the firs time ever, this has also been issued (o local authority dircctors of children services, to ascertain their views on
twust performance in academies in their fegion. For parents/carers, responses from Pareni View are captured for all academies, Responses from all the
surveys are analysed dnd presented to trust board, where‘appropriate actions are considered and undertaken as a result of that analysis. Again, results:are
also shared at lucal Jevel at academy council meetings,

Objectives and Activities

Objectives and Aims

“The Articles of Association clearty dcl’mc the pnmmy objéctive and acuvny ol' the trubi as;

l. o advance for the pul)hc benefit cducution in the Unitéd Kingdom, in paeticular, but Wiihéut prejudhcé, to the generality of thé: I"on.gmng by
establishing, maintaining, careying on, -managing and dcvclopmg schols offering a broad and balanced curriculum or cducational ihstituiions
which are principally cancemed; with pm\'\dlm, full-time or part-time education for children of compulsery school age

2. o promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the commuinities served by the Académics and the surrounding areas the provision of facilitics for
recreation or other leisure time. occnp'\lmn of individuals who have need of such fucilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement,
financtal hardship or social. and economic urcumhlﬂm.u or for ihe pubhc ab large in ihe intercsts of sociol welfare and with the objects of improving
ihe condition.of life of the said inhabitants,

“Ihic Northern Edueation Teust vision and shonened iag-liné 1s;

“We consiantly foeus on standards as we unterstand oulcomes sire paromouni. Oue decision making is driven entirely by.ivhat i§ best for children, By
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*NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST:
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
-FORTHE VEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

doing this we cnhance the life chances.of the.childreri and yourig people in our care™
Outcomes. Focused, Chil& Cenired..

" The NORTHERN Model of school improvement pnnclplcs are:

t.  Noexceptions and no excuses ,

2, Ouistanding leadership with integrity focused on outcomes, vision and values

3 Relentless focus on standards

4,  ‘Teaching and learning delivered and sustained to a high level in the classroom
5. High expcctations in behaviour and stafT performance
6.  Enrichmeni in curriculum and beyond
7. .Recruitmeni, Retention and Stalf Development
8. Neiwork development and system leadership

The 10 values which underpin our vision

| \We care passionatcly about the education and welfare of young people .

2. Webelicve that alt young people, irrespective of background or ability will be successful in our trust

3. Weare not and will never be selective. We belicve that local schoels aré for lacal children

4. 'We are always inclusive. Our mechanisms to suppori the mosi vulnerable child 1o succced and overcome barricrs to lcarming are a key aspect of our
Avork

5. Our approach to education recognises that oufcomes are paramount and also allows children to gain cxperiences and values which prepare them
. fully for life in modem Britain. This includes workplace skills and appropriate advice for future progression

6. 'We have high expectations of behaviour

7. Weadopt the local authority admissions protocol and work closely with them

8. 'We would always wish to act in such a way that has a positive effect on a neighbouring school or community, We. cdre passionately-about children

in all schools, not just our own
9. ‘Thatall employees act with mtcgruy and cmbrace the value that *we arc the trust”
10, 'We work regionatly and nationally to develop approaches to MA'T improvement.that influcnce the wider schaol-led system

Objectives, blmlcgms and Activities

Northern Education Trust (NET) is @ Company Limited by Guarantce (Exempt Charily) created under the provisions of the Academies Act 2010, as
amended by the Education Act 201 1. Its structure of governance is constituted under the articles of association. NET is an exempt charity by virtue of the
Charities Aci 2011, '

The funding agreement between the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and NET scts out the terms and conditions on which grants are made.
The trust board is responsible for ensuring that conditions of the grant are mel. As-part of this process the trust is required to have i place sound financial
systems and controls. These financial regulations form part of this overall system of accountability;

All academies in NET work closely with each other as a “family of schools”, The strength of the wrust comes {rom cach academy individually and
collectively to form a trust with one single vision and shared set. of values. Together the trust works continuously to ensurc thai all young people,
irrespective of nced and starting point, receive an excellent education and wider opportunitics.

The trust recognises the aceds of all its pupils and students and its decision making is driven entirely by whai is best for children, By doing this we
enhance the life chances of the chitdren and young people in our care, Meeting the needs of our most vulncrable and challenging children is a priority in
all academies with close relaiionships with parents/carers developed and maintained as to further raise atinment, resilience and high standurds of
behaviour. The table below shows the headline daia for pupils / students for the summer of 2023;

NORR-6 | Girls% | Boys% Pupil | Minority |Englishasan| SEN |SENEHC| Schoo!
Primary Academy | Premium | Ethnic | Additional | Support % Deprivation
% Groups % | Language % % ' Indicator
Abbey Park Academy 196 . 52% 48% 48% 9% 4% 17% 0.5% 0.30
Badger Hill Academy 138 52% 48% 27% % | 1% 17% | 0.0% 0.15
Frederick Nattrass Academy 1 203 | 48% 52% 68% 13% 6% 14% 2.5% 0.33
Hilton Academy 393- | 49% 51%. 65% 37% 2% 20% 2.5% 0.33
Merlin Tap Academy 309 50% 50% 63% 32% 18% 18% 2.6% 0.35
Mount Pellon Academy 300 45% 55% 48% 94% 2% 21% 2.7% 0.31
Norton Academy 319 45% 55% 48% 8% 2% 13% 2.2% 0.32
Oak Tree Academy 245 43% 51% 75% . 19% 13% 25% 2.9% 0.44
The Ferns Academy 409 51% 49% 38% 44% 35% . 17% 1.2% 0.31
Whitecliff Academy 90 43% 51% 60% 2% 1% 24% 2.2% 0.34
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‘NOR > Giels% Boys% . Pupll Minority ! | English as an | SEN Support | SENEHC% School

Secondary Academy Premium % |Ethnic Groups| Additional % Deprivation
% Language % indicator

Dyke House Academy i 1325 3%% . 51% 44% 12% 9% 11% 1% 0.34
Freebrough Academy N i 815 X 49% 51% 35% - 4% 1% i 18% 4% 0.28
Hetton Academy ' 636 51% 49% 41% 5% - 286 . 15% X 0.27
|Kearstey Academy . . 738 T am 53% 35% 23% 18% 13% 2% 0.25
Kirk Balk Academy 1334 49% 51% 26% 4% 1% 18% - 3% - .0.20
Manar € ity Academy 1032 50% 50% 45% 4% 3% 16% 3% 0.33
North Share Acad =736 49% 51% _S52% " | . 18% T 1% 16% 2% 0.34
Red Mouse Academy 425 51% * 49% 50% 12% 6% 24% F1% 0.39
Thorp Academy 1423 4% 51% 2% | 8% 2% 8% 2% - 017
The Blyth Academy 787 49% 51% 48% $% 3% 13% ~ 3% 0.31
The Grangeﬁeld Academy 1014 45% i 55%- 43% 26% .16% 12% 2% 0.31
Waibottle A ¥ 1634 S0% X 50% 37% 2% L] O 1e% 9% 1% 0.26

The trust has developed and implemented through the scheme o['dx.l(.g.mon a number of tonsisient, system ted models and processes (o provide a culture
that is both tight and deep in terms of how academies and senior leaders. operaie ihroughaut the trust, Trustees recognise the actions thai have been taken
which include in summary:

I, Conunucd devclopment of the NORTHERN Madel of school i improvement principles

2, A continued developiment of the delegations approved by the Scheme of Delegation in relaiion io- statutory requirements, secior best practice and
. operational support to better mect the best needs of children and value for money.

3, Further enhance the curriculurii across all academics to better meet the needs of children with a strong link to financial planning using the

parameters of a bonus of 8% (bonus is a mcasure of tcacher time above or belowa reference line, historically, the reference line has been the teacher
time required fo give an average class size of 27) and 0,79 coniact ratio (contact ratio is the perccitage of time a lcachcr will spend in front of
students as an average).

4, Continued support {roni trustecs 10 drive school improvement and increase the number of Dm.ctors of Subject and Directors of Learning alongside
other arcas of school improvement,

5. With rcgards to oulcomes: for students, the trust uses the national benchmark for exam pass rates in 4+ and S+ as a méasurc of ils pufommncc
nationally, given the demographics of the academics for which the trust serves. However, 1hé trust has aspirations 1o achicvé 70% in 4+ and 50% in
5+ which it has done for ¢ach.of the last two years on average.

During the year, the trust was subject to a MAT Summary Evaluation (MATSE) by OFSTED, The OFSTED visit was the second (ime the trust has been
cvaluated, the first. being in 2016. The trust is the first MAT to receive two visits by OFSTED for this purpose. The purposc of a MATSE is for inspectors

*to explore the extent to which the trust is delivering high-quality cducation and improving pupils' achicveient across Lhe academies in the trust, The
below is a summary of the OFSTED findings:

e Since the fast focused review by Ofsted, trusices and other leaders have transformed how the trust operates

e Schuols that have recently joined the trust have undergone inonumental improvements that arc life-changing for pupils and siafT”

e Qrthe trast’s 22 schools, based across the north of England, six are *outstanding’ and 15 *good".:Onc school has yet to be inspected since joining

e Govemance is strong, Trustees arc highly skilled in their roles

e Leaders’ vision that *we are the trust’ is exceptionally well undérstood and implemented by staff across all schools

o Leaders sce the trust as ‘on¢ school over many sites, There is no real distinction between. trust leaders and school feaders. Leaders at all feyels arc
‘ambitious for pupils

& Overall, published outcomes across the trust are exceptionally strong

o Siaffatall levels are effusive about working in the trusi

«  All leadess,‘abiding by the trust’s mantra, are ‘outcomes-focused, child centred,” They ensure that staff across the st focus on the pupils and that
they are successful in what they do

e i 2017, irust leaders needed to sccurc improvements quickly, Many ways of working across the trust were prescribed. Through excepiional
leadership (rom the CEO and other leaders, stall are now much more able to contribule io trust policies and do so throughout the trust

e The work of the corporate tcams across the trust; including finance, human resourcds, dala and estales, is exceptional They too use the
NOR’I:HIERN model in their work. They help to ensure that Icaders spend money well on improving Fcilitics and cducational resources: in tach
school.

Public Benefit
In setiing our objectives and planning ouractivities, the lrustecs have carefully considered the Charity Commissions general guidance on public benefit

STRATEG IIC REPORT

Achicvemenis and Performance
Trustees at the Octeber Board mcetng received the sumnicr 2023 performance results for primary academies anid secondary-academics,

an'\rv
2023 will be the first year since 2019 that pecformance tables for the primary phase will he published.
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'ifl\‘.c_t:ibié below summarises the Key Siage 2 (KSZ-) results’ for. 2019, 2022 and. 2023 for the trust aid also nationally

Table (a) - 2019 : 2022 2023

Level Subject - National | TrustAll | Nationat | Trust Al | National | Trust All
Reading 1 3% 71% 75% | °.80% 3% |7 |

exs Writing 78% | 80% | .69% | 78% 1 71% | 8% |
Maths 7% 7% 71% 793 73% 83%
RWM Combined | - 653 66% s9% | 719 | 59% 73%
Reading 27% 18% 28% | 2a% 29% | 31%

o Writing _ 20% 18% 13% | 13% | 13% 15%

Maths 27 | 20w 23% | ‘2% | 24% 22%
RWM Combined |  21% -t 736 | 7% | "s% | 8% ‘| 6% "

“The 2023. fesulls show a strong performance in KS2, with a 2pp increase on 2022 for combined and a 7ppincreuse on 2019, National for combined
remained unchanged from 2022 to 2023 at 59% and the trust oulpcrfomaed national avcmgcs in all areas at L‘(§+ ‘and also for reading and writing at
grcatcr depth (GDS)

Academies With notable performances werc:
1. Badger Hill -93% combincd EXS# with 79%. reading GDS.. Thc average poinits score for n.admg was 114 dnd for maths: | IO pulung, lhcm in the
Aop 12% and top 20% nanonally
. Frederick Natirass — 89% for all subjects and comblm.d EXS+ (this cohort were 8 l% disadvantaged),
' Moum Pellon —achicved abové national for the first time, with 64% conibined EXS+ with 40% reading GDS,
'Illllon - 73% combincd EXS¥ with 41% reading GDS {77% ol this cohon were disadvantaged).-
Norion —78% conibincd EXS*+.
The Fetns = 75% combined with 30% miaths GDS
Qak Tree - 73% combmcd EXS+.

v

W BN

b

o

The trust’s performance of disadvaniaged studcnts was also stfong with.69% achieving EXS+ combm»d compared witl the nationat disadvantaged fig igure
of 44%, The trusi’s cohort of 2023 had 59% disadvantaged, ‘alinost double the natignal average of 30%. The trust’s disadvantigéd students out-
performed non-dlsadvantd“cd students nativnally who nchxcu.d 66% combined EXS+. The irust’s non-disadvantaged “siudeius achieved 78% EXS+
combined.

. Table(®) | Reading | ‘Writing | Maths
. APA 1.0 0.6 2.4
BHA 87 | as 5.3
| FNA 1.9 0.0 14
HA 13 1. 24 1.0
“MTA 01 | 13 .08
“MPA 5.0 35 | 52
‘NA. _-0.0 0.9 1.1
OTA 2.5 .28 2.4
TFA 07 | 28 1.4
WA 0.2 2.0 1.0
T(ust 1.7‘. 2.1 ‘21

Far. the 2023 cohort, progress in reading was 41,7, in writing +2.1 and in maths +2.1. The.most progréss betwéen KS1 and KS2 was mide by Badges
Hifl, Mount Pellon and Oak Tree

“Key. Stage 4

The tables below show Year 11 hicadling provisional results for summer 2023, along With historical results from 2017, i igures for 2020 and 2021 are nov
shmvn as’ lhuy were based on centre-assessed and teacher-assessed grides r‘spccll\*ely and it has been recognised ‘nationally ihat there. was a degree of.
sgrade inflation® diring those years, Therefore, figures for 2020 and 2021 are not. difeelly comparable wilh externally cxdmlm.d or assessed courses.
Figures for 2022 arc nkcn from DIE"s 'Find school and college performance daia in England® website.

Data for 2023 i5"based on information from awarding bodics on GCSE results day “The figures are. therefore, provisional at this stage and do not take
account of any requesis for reviews of grading at student level, National avirages are not expecied to'be published until late October.,

In Scptemiber 2022, Ofgual announced that they expect nvu"\ll resulls. i, 2023 to be tauch (,Io.u,r lo pre-pandemic § years than results since 2020 This
decision means (hin resulls. in 2023 weie expected (6'be lower than in 2022, and it may be mdre reasouble to uge 2019 resulls as  bascline for
, comparative purposes rather than 2022,

"The nbh. below shows the. percentage of Year Il students who achicved s gude Sor beter in Hoth English and inaths in stimer 2023, dlong with

‘h::,mncx:l resulls from. 20!7 Eight of the twelve academics’ results are at or above ZOI‘) with. improvements up. to 34%, and the trust figure (50%) s
thrce pcrccnlag,c points hu,hur lh'\n 2019 (47%). The2022 mational, avcng,c was 50%, but given the Ofqual anriouncement, (he 20"3 national average
« may fall back i i line wuh 2019 (43%) Should that be the case, ten of the iwelve academics \\ould be above the national ligure.
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+ English and Maths

2023

2017 2018 2019 2022
GCSEs 6+  ° )
Biyth - 18%  31%  48%  46% 38%
Dyke House 42%  42%  42%  51%  49%

+ Freebrough 25%  27%. 26%  60%  60%
Grangefietd 35% .61%  54%  S54%  54%.
Hetlon 28%  28%  30%  43%  45%
Kearsley '20%  48%  53%  50%  49%
"Kirk Balk 43%  S6%  ST%  54%  59%
‘Manor 32% 3% 41%  46%  49%
North Shore ‘30%  35%  38%  G0%  49%
Red House 21%  23% -43%  S56%  38%
Thop 8%  54%  54%  69%  53%
Walbolle 16%  25%  20%  53%  48%
Trust 3%  4%%  4T%  64%  50%
_National L43% . 43% 4% i

50%

The table below shows the percentage of Year 11 students who achieved a grade 4 or better in both English and maths in summer 2023, along with
historical results from 2017, Eight of the twelve academies’ results arc above 2019, with improvements up to 25%, and the trust figure (68%) is one
percentage point higher than 2019 (67%). The 2022 national average was 69%, bul. given the Ofqual announcement the 2023 national average may fall

back in line with 2019 (65%). Shauild that be the case, cight of ihe twelve academics would be above that figure,

Englishand Maths 2017 2018 2019 2022 2028
Blyth 32%  49%. 64%  62%  58%
Dyke House 69% 84% -68%  70%  70%

" Freebrough 48% 47% 50% 79% 75%
Grangeficld 61% 6% T76%  73%  69%
Hetion 61% 50%  51%  66%  62%

“Kearsley 4% 63%  65%  70%  G68%

. Kirk Balk 64%  73%  75%  T6%  71% ,

* Manor 52%  53% -61%  69%  70%
Narth Shore 50%  55%  63%  T1%  69%
‘Red House 33%  45% % 76%  5T%
Thorp 61%  71%  7i%  82%  74%
“‘Walbotiie 3%  49% 4% 68%  63%
Trust 83% -61% 67% 72%  68%
National 64% 84% 65% 69%

English Baccalmireaté (Ebace)

Ebacc is a notional suite of GCSEs (hat include English, maths, at least two sciences (which mdy include computer science), a humanity (history or
geography) and a modern forcign language,

In 2022, the percentage of studenis entered for the full suite of EBace GCSEs was almost double the percentage in 2019, and the figure for 2023 was
49%, almaost thrée times the: rate in 2019 und ten percentage points higler than the 2022 national averagie (39%)- Results are shown in the wble below wid

also suggest the increase in entrics will correspond with an increase in (he average points score per grade, from 3.6 in 2019 to 4.0 in 2023,
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Ebace Entries 2017 - 2018 2019 2022 2023
Blyth 1% 3% 5% 35%  48%
Dyke House 84%  37% 8% 3% 6%
Freebrough 5% 23%  10%  38%  55%
‘Grangefield. 51% 23%  45%  47%  54%
Hetton 2% 9% 8% 19% - '32%
Keassley 80% 20% 6%  41%  51%
Kirk Batk 63% 28%  40% '51% . 42%
Manor 4% 9% 6% 19% . S7%
North Shore 8% 3% 13%  55%  49%
Red House 8% 18% 0% 17%  49%
Thorp % W% M% 4% T4%
Walbottle 19%  12% 2% .20%  33% |
Trust 43%  18%  18% .37%  49%
‘Nationa) 38% 38% 40% 3%

Key Performance lndicators (KPI)

Acudemy Pcrl‘ormance

1'hc summary ¢xamination results for 2022/23 academic year are shown in the previous scetion (Aclucvcmcnts and PLI’fOﬁHﬂI\CC)

Student Attendance Numbers X
“T'he 1ables below show the auendance in boih primary and secondary academies for the last academic year. This year, and following the policy updaies,

all academices are. implementing immediate intervemion (as soon as atiendance drops below 97%) where students wvere recognised as persistently absent

(PA) - those with attendance below 90% cumulative for the previous academic year, or severely absent (SA) - those with auendance below 50%

cumulative for the previous academic year and especially those who are critically absent (CA) - those with attendance below 20% cumulative for the

previous academic year.

Primary

Half the primary academies had attendance above the national average for the 2022/3 academic year, All primary academies weré significantly below the
national average for persistent absence, Overall the primaries as a wholc came out with atiendance in line with the national average,

‘Whulst the data below shows the attendance rucordcd for the whole of the fast academic year, it is students who have not been able to return in September

due 10 holidays, being the mast affeciing factor impaciing on attendance in primary academics

Academy  pqq, PP SeNDE SENDK Y& A% LA
sTers)  (F° (sTery) (sTEes)  GFF o) (om)

APA 94.0% 925%  88.0%  93.7%  928% 939%  946%
BHA 96.0% 946%  nfa  96.0%  96.0% 96.0%  94.2%
FNA 04.1%  032%  784%  932%  024%  94.1%  94.4%
HA 93.2% 92.0% 94.7% 92.2% 91.8% 93.3% 93.9%

"MTA 939%  934%  857%  939%  94.1%  940%  93.0%
MPA 91.5% 91.9% 87.5% 90.2% 94.1% " 91.5% 94.6%
NPA 946%  94.0% 942%. 953%  056% 945%  94.4%
OTA 95.7%  957%  92.9%  955%  961% 957%  94.4%
TFA 94.6%  93.8%  94.0%  935%  941%  945%  94.5%
WA 936%  926% 939% 941%  927%  934%  942%
Trust 94.0%  93.3% 90.0%  935% 941%  94.0%

- National . T 944%

Sccondary

A focus for the secdndary jiimsc will be the immediate application of the policy for studeits who require infervention the quickest {as cxplained above)

Kearsley Academy, Kirk Balk Academy and North Shore Academy had the strongest atiendance fast year, although all three were still betow the nationa!
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»

average. The. nced io continuc to-prioritisc attendance. was a ‘Slear focus of the récént confcrcncc and thei momlormg.. of auend.mcc S0 hr this y year has. bccn
: cnhanccd by the executive,

-

PP

'Acac_:lemy At % SENDE SENDK  Yi1 At % LA
" (STEP6) (STEP (STEP6) (STEP6) (STEP (DfE) (DfE)
. 6) T * -g) ' x '

+ TBA- 836% 79.7% 855% 77.5% 77.5% 836% 916%
‘DHA B875% 847% -718%. 897% .757% 888% - 90.1%
FA 88.1%  B3.7% 93.1% 86.0% 827% 88.0% ‘90.4%
TGA! B876%  84.0% 80.0% 86.2% 843% B87.6% . 90.0%
'HTA 876% 844% 836% 852% -813% B7.7% .80.3%

89.5%  86.7%  827%  B9.5% -863% 896% 919%
KBA‘ 888% 823% 803% .91.0% 84.1%  89.0% 90.1%
MCA 87.2% .834% .86.0% .84.7%  82.3% 87.3% 90.1%
NSA 890% . 876% -824% 888% .850%  89.0% 90.0%
‘RHA 86.9%. B828% 80.7%  84.3% 809%  86.8% .90.3%
TJA B87.3% 78.8% '84.8% .B49% 81.7% 87.3% .882%
WBA 82.5% 77.1% "524% *824% 706% B83.7% 88.8%

« Jrust: 869% 827% - 811% 86.4% - 80.2% * * 8Z.3% 3% L

“\National " . . oo 90.8% -

)

Page 12




NO RTI[E RN EDUC ATION’ TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

-
‘Financiat KPI's
2032123 202122
 Siaff Costs as a % of GAG ‘ )
“Tolal stafT costs' (ewc[udmg supply and.festructure &osts) 85.14% 80.49%
Teachers §5.71% $3.64%
Support 114.93% 13.51%
.Administration 14.5% 13.34%
‘Current Ratio 262 2.63
Reserves ds o % of 2/121kis target *63.52% 68.81%
Créditor Dn)s .
The avcmgc amount of tinié it 1akes 16 pa) crcdnors (Not mcludiﬁ; BACS cléarance days) 30 35

Culng Concern'

After miking approprialé enquiries, the board of trustces have a rcasonnbk. ‘expectation that the academy trust has. adequale resources. to continue in
opunhonal cxistence for the foreseeable fuiure, For this reason, it continues to adapt the gomg concem basis in preparing-the l'mancml statements:
Furiher details: regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found i the Siatement of Accounting Policics,

Through the budget seiling process, the trusUhas undertaken an extensive picée of work to ensure that the additional costs in rélation 1o teachers pay,
support. staff pay, utilitics and rising costs in gencral can be met by the existing grants that il réceives from the Cducation.and Skills Funding Agency and
has been shared with the Exccutive,

Prontoting the success f the comipany

General Confirmation of Trustees and Execntive” Dutics

The Northem. Education Trust members, trusiees and executive wider the regulation of the ESFA and charity commission has # elear framework for
dch.rmmmg the matters within ils remit and has approved {erms of refercnce for the matters delegated to its commillees, The schemge of defegation
establishes clear [inancial and stratcgic thresholds which determine delegation to the cxeeutive and :dcnnfy matters quumng board considurition and
approval, More information-on trust policics and procedures can be found on the website.

\\'hm making decisions, cach trustee ensures that he/she acts in the way he/she considers, in good faith and most likely promote the lrusts \'lSIC'l'I and
values, Trustees have shown a commitmeni Lo the Nolan Principlés and sector / trust requirements regarding probity, propriety and regulirity in signing &
role dcscnpuon and in doing so have regard. (among other matters) tox

The Likély Conscquenceés of Any Decision in the Long 'lcrm

The tiustees and executive understand ihe sector and local regions in which we operate, including the challenges of best supporting €hildren and familics
with {h¢ gréitest needs,-Based on the rusts vision (Qutcomes focussed, Child centred), the sirategies sct by the board have significantly improved the.
progress and outcomes of children in the north of Engldnd. Fhe trusts’ 6-year consecutive improvement in studént outcomes has been rccogmscd by the
- Department (or Education, Regional Schools Commissionér and OFSTED with further schools being, sponsored by the trust and joining the “family of
schools™, Continuied ercng(h and progress is being made in the financial medium term plan with funding uncertainty anid cost pre&sun,s in salatics and
rsupplncﬁ being managed to proyide. luds of rcs«.rvcs that affer new. opponumucs in school improvement.

‘The trusteés and cxecutive récoghisé our hiLh performance can he. viewed by dilferent purts of socicty, the scctor and wider stakeholders that some
“decisions they fake today: may nol align with everyone’s inferesls. Given the comph,xu)' of mecting the needs: of every single: child in; our academies, (he:
trustees and executive have taken the decisions ihey. b(.llcvc best supports our vison: Outcomes fosussed, Child centred,

In the fable below, we-outline some of the strategic decisions made by the. bcmrgl over the year, cxplain how the trustees and excoutive have engaged with,,
or invrelation to, the different key siakeholdet groups and how stakeholder intérests were considéred over the course of decision-making:

t, 'Dchlop(.d a gm\\lh Strategy ‘for the trust which i it summary-aims to increase the number of aéademics in the arcas outlined, whilst scaling up.
without compromising, so-that more childrén and marc communities can benefit from the quality of education the:trust can provide

2, Sponsorship of Farringdon Academy in'Sunderland where again performance has been improved and the support of the: focal conmunity ind Cxl}

«  Council has been received

3, «Continued partnerships and investment With Tocal groups to defiver sporting dttivitics e.g, football clubs, a rugby club and a ericket. club

& Further collaboration with Local Autharities to better suppord children with needs e.g. development of new provisions and site nvestmeit at Bly(h
-Acddeniy, Freebraugh Acadeiny, Walbottié Academy and Tharp Academy

5. TFuither dwclopmcnt of the NET StafT College, for usc and engagumml with focal businesses, stakeholders and clubs as well as CPD and |rammg

oppmumllcs for, NET"s employce base
.6 Support (o other Mulii Acadery I'nms through Service T.ével Agrecments, providing school improvement and back office suppurt

The Interests of the Company’s Employces

The trustees and cxecutive rcmymc that our employces are fundamental and cor to (e dch\'uy and achicvement of the tfust vision, The Succéss of the,

frust depends on atracting, rétaining and motivating emplayees. From cnsurmg that the frust rémains a responsible-emplayer, (rony pay and benefits to
*health and safely and. workplace environment, the: trusiees aid exeeative factor the implications of decisions on cmplmo.cs and. the wider work foreé,
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where relevant and feasible. The trustees and executive recognise that dur pensiofers, though no longer employces, also remain important stakeholders.

The trust continues to develop as an ecmployer of choice and recognises both the good work of its stafT against the financial challenges faced in the cumrent
economic climate. To overcome these chalicnges and best stpport staff the trust has revised its car salary sacrifice scheme to be more environmentally
susiainable (cars limiled to be only hybrid, full electric or hydrogen powered only), the introduction of eleclric charge points across a number of
academies and mlroducc.d a staff perk scheme oﬂ‘crmo wider goods and services through salary sacrifice and dlrccl discounts for high street brands for
cmplnyt.c:

‘The trusl has also mplcmculcd a number of initiatives for teachers to proactively reduce workload and this has been recognised by teaching unions that -

the trusi work closcly with, Examples of the initiatives include live marking so that teachers are no. longct cxpected to mark books at home and pre-
planned lessons undertaken by the trust subject directars.

During the year, the trust taunched two working groups; the workload action group and staff retention working group. Both groups are designed to
improve the working lives of support staff by cngaging with employces and working together Lo improve working conditions, workload, improve benefits
for employees and understand what is important to employees.

On the 1% of January 2023, following significant consultation and negatiation, the trust.implemented a job evaluation scheme and consistent terms and
conditions of employment for support staff trust wide. StalT bricfings were held in every academy and in the central team This negoliation resulied in a
yes batlot and the trust entered into a collective agreement with the recagnised trade unions, GMB, Unison and Unite. An equality impact assessment was
carricd oul which evidenced that the outcome of the job cvaluation scheme is not dxscnmmmory In temis of pay, 85% of support stalf either benefited or
remained the same as a result of the changes. These changes ensured that staff carrying out the same job in different geographical regions of the trust, are
all remunerated equitably, The L1 current different pay scales were replaced with one t.onsnslcni pay and grading structure.

The Necd to Foster the C pany’s Busi Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and Others

Delivering the vision requires strong mutually bencficial relationships with parents/carcrs, local / central government, community leaders, supplicrs, and
panners. NET sceks the promotion and application of 10 key values in such relationships, The ability to promote these values effectively is an important
factor in the decision Lo enter into or remain in such relationshups. The Board delegates to its Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) the responsibility (0
review and approve major supplicrs and contracts. ARC continuously assess the priorities related to customers and those with whom we do business, and
the Board engages with the businesses on these topics,

Morcover, the trustces and cxecutive teceive information updates on a vasicly of topics that indicate and inform how these stakeholdérs have been
engaged. These fange from information provided from procurement function (on contract performance, rencwal and future planning) to information
provided by the diréctor of finance (on creditor payments, due diligence for future sponsorship and re-hrokerage)

‘The Impact of the Company’s Operations on the Commuvity and the Environment

This aspect is inherent in our strafegic ambitions, most notably on our ambitions to improve the outcomies of students and have a releniless focus on
children As such, the board receives information on all phases in our academics and then specific groups of students (e.g. primary, sccondary and post 16
.split between sex, deprivation and English as an additional languagc ¢tc.). The trust board morcover delegales close scruting in these aren to dcads.m)
councils who hold local leaders to account playing a kcy role in the drive for conlinuous school mprovcmcnl Please see page 18 for carbon reporting
disclosures which hlghhght how the Trust is demnmng its impact on the environment.

The Desirability of the Company Maintaining a Reputation for High Standards of Business Conduct .

‘NET aims to support children across the north of England and schools nationally in a way that at all times supports the requirements of régularity, probity
and propriciy. ‘The board continuously réviews and approves clear [rameworks, such as expectations for lcaming policy, remote lcaming policy, code of
conduct, specific ESFA publications and leuers, and its modern stavery statements, to ensure that its high standards are maintained boih internally ond
wider, This, complemented by the ways the board is informed and monitors rcgmanly probity and propricty helps assurc its decisions it makes and way
its acts promotes high standards of business conduct.

The Need to Act Fairly as Between Members of the Company
Adler réscarching, discussing and often consullation the board weighs up all refevam faciors. Trustees and the exccuiive consfder which course of action,
best enables delivery of our sirategy through the long-term, taking into cunsrdcmuon at «ll times the impact on children, In doing 50, our trustees and
execufive ael ﬁurly and promote the highest standards of iniegrity,

“The board recognises that it has an i'mpurl'ml tole in assessing and munimring thai our desired culiure is embedded in the values, atiiwedes and behaviours
we demonstrate, including in our activitics and stakcholder relationships. The board has established the Notan Principles for pegple as primarily NET's
cor¢ values The recent goverance review and role descriptions: for trustecs, code of conduct, and job deseriptions for every post help everyone at NET
act in hne and support fuilly these values and comply with refevant laws and regulations,

Contained within'the relevant policies and procedures that govern (he trust is an appeal pracess for the'end user, so that staff, customers, students and key
stakeholders.can take conifort in the fact that the trustees understand the needs of individuals.

Finaneial Review
The trust’s accounting period is from Sepicmber 2022 to Atgust 2023,

Most ofthe trusts incone s obtaned frum the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form af recurren grants, the use of which is restricted
10 pariicular purposes. The grants received from (he ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2023 aud the associated expenditure are shown as restricted
funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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.Acadeniics also receive grants for their major asseis from the ESFA and Via the Local Auihorities: In accordance. with the Charities. Statément of
"Recommended Practice, *Accounting and Reporting, by Charities” (SORP 2019), such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activitics (SOFA)
as restricted income irv the fixed asset fund’ The Restricted Fixed Assct Fund balance is reduced by zmnual dcprcc:auon charges over.the cxpcclcd useful
life-of the assets concerned.

During the yeur ended 31 August 2023, lofal expenditure of £116,368k (2022: £107,913k) iwas mei by recurrent grant funding from the-GSFA, other
incoming resotirces and funding carricd forward from the previous year. The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was £1,069k. This is
unrestricicd surplus plus restricted deficii excluding pension reserve and including transfers, This surplus.added o current reserves of £11,695k provides
overatl cumulative reserves, excluding pension reserves, for the year ended 31 August 2023 of £12,764k,

The conlribuling factors to the increased level of reserves has been the continued usc of Curriculum Led Financial Planning (CLEP) across the medium
term and savings from saluries where, like many other academy trusts across the sector, despite rigorous elforts o recruit stall and increascd employce
incentive schemes, it has been significantly challenging and a number of posts have been held vacant (hmughoul the year. Increased expendslur» also
comes. from the addition of Hetton Acadcmy during the year. The impact of the additional academy can be scen in.noie.25.

A3t Augusl 2023 the nei book value of tangible Mixed dssets was £143,448k (2()22- £144,554k) and movements in tangible fixcd asscts arc shown in.
note 14 (o the financial statcments The assets were uscd cxcluswcly for provxdlng educalion.and the associaled support scrv;cc.s to the pupils ol the”
academies within the trust,”

The trust continues io enhance its.central team function by increasing resources in school improvement from:
1. The appoinimerit ‘of s;condary and primary direciors of subjccts and Icarnmg
2. “The appointment of posts in Finance and T & Communications

The trust has also continued to reciuit dnd invest in business.managers, creating a number of new roles to further support school improvement,

During the fonhcomuw inancial ycar the trust will implement it's gro\nh stratcgv as outhned. As a resull of this ihe trust has identificd a number of
posis and systems. that it will need (o invest it to further enhance the schoo! improvement model and to provide the best outcomes for students. A fully
costed medium. i¢rm Gnancial sirategy has been produced and shows the affordability of the growth strategy.

The DFE have annqunced increases 1o the Teachers Pension Scheme contribution rate for cmploycrs which wilt be fully funded for the financial year
2{124-2025 and the Trust has also built inio it's medium term inancial plan the, pubhshud inércase in teacher pay and support staff pay awards,

Reserves Policy

The Northern. Education Trust (NET 3 teserves policy secks to proteet the trusts activities and make sufficient proviston for future cash flow requirements
and investimerit, The policy helps to provide a framework for future strategic planning. and decision-making, “The development of an effective reserves.
policy will help to mitigate the impact of any risk upon the conlinuing operations of the trust-such (hat it has financial stability and both short and loriger-
term viability:

.Overall the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)Y and Charity Commission expect trustees to decide, publish, implement and monitor their
chrity’s reserves policy so that they can comply with their legat dutics to;

1. actin the interests of their charity and its beneficiarics

2. proiectand safcguard the assets of their charity

3. - act with reasonable cire and skill

4, ensure their charity is accountable

Du:ldmg the level of reserves the {rust nceds 1o hold is an important part of financial management and forward finaicial planning; Failure to do this inay

result in reserves levels which are either! .

1. higher than necessary and may tic up money unnecessarily, Holding excessive reserves can unnecessatily Timit the amount speni on ehariiable
aclivities and the potential benefits a charity can provide

2. 100 low, increasing the risk to the charity’s ability-to carry an ils activities in future in the event of financial difticullivs, and increasing the risks of
anplanncd and unmanaged closure.and insolvency

The target set for trust unn.slnctcd I restricted g.nunl reserve is 16% (or 2 months) of total expenditure for the current year. The trust will ensure that
small variaiions in income and expenditure n year do not adversely aftect the cumulative reserves of cach academy. The rust therefore will establish.
teserves in cach academy of £15,000, The level of reserves held entrally and: in academics will therefore provide. ‘sufficient working cupital to cover
delays between spending and reccipt of grants and (o provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as brgent maintenance.

NB Exceptional iems. of expenditure.will be excluded from gross expenditure if ihey fncludeé for example the new sponsorship of an academy and the
inclusion of it§ asscts,

Reserves held in excess of the target percentages for unrestricted reserves and réstricted general reserves will be feviewed by the trust board as pant of the
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) report to board,

The MTFP report may include releasing funds into the revenue budget in furtherance of the (rist’s objeclives, assigning funds to apprapriate designated
feserves for speeific projecis such as capital spend, supporting pupvl growth and other projects as determined and approved by the irust beard.

Any miovemtnt. of funds from restricied to unrestricted must be subject to obtaining appropriatc conscat from the grigingl doner of the, Fonds
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'l'ypcs of Reserves

Unsestricted Reserves:

Unrestricted Reserves (mcludmg Designated Reserves — sée belaw) are derived from either the central tcam or the acndcmy s aclivitics or guncmlmg
funds, investment income and other donations that can. be spent at the discretion of the trustces and/or the exccutive team, in furtherance of NETs vision
-and Strategic Development Plan,

Unrestricied Rescrves are either designated to-individial academies or to the central team. Unrestricted Reserves.are gencrally defined as funds held after
excluding;
1. Endowment funds (permancnt & expendable);
-2, Restricted funds; and
3. Funds that can. only bc generated on the sale of ﬁxcd assels used for chanlablc purposcs.

Dusignalcd Reseryes
Included iithin Unrestricted Reserves are Designaied Reserves which have been designated for a porticular purpose. Where. a designation has been.
ldcnhﬁu.d the purposc and timing of any n.'(p\.nduurc must be explained.

Restricted Rescrvcs
Re:lnclcd Rescrves include; the General Reserve, the rwcd Asscl Rcscr\'q. and the Pension Reserve.

Restricted General Reserves
Thiese funds are restricted Gor use in-accordawice: with The funding agreement or donars’ instructions and inchude for example: General r\nnual Gr'mt
(GAG) Nursery Funiding from the Local 1\mh0nly and Pupil Premium,

Restricied Fixed Asset Ro.scr\’c
‘The Restricted. Fixed Asscl Reserve is specilically hcld for capital purpascs and equates to the Net Book Value of the asscts held by the trust, plus any
Aunspend capital granis that have been decounted for in year.

Pension Reserve

The pension surplus or deficit does not constitute an Tmmediate liability or realisable asset and docs not mean that the equivalenl amount is already
committed or no-longer available 10 the Trust. The presénce of a pension surplus or deficit will generally result ina cash flow effect for the trust in the
form of an increasé.of decrcase in employers’ pension contributions over a period of years. NET is confident that it can meet the required pension
contributions from projected future income withaut significanily impacting: upon Jis ptanned level of aciivities. The Trust continues to calculate its
reserves without setiing aside a Designaled Rescrve (o cover the pension lisbility.

Endowment Reserve- , N . -
The amounts held in the endowment: reseivé: were inherited on conversion of Red HMouse Academy and North Shore Academy, The amounts rémain
unchanged during the year,

‘The unrestricted reserves held as at 3ist August 2023 was £10,760k (2022' £9,239k) and the restricicd general feservés for the same period before
pension were £2,004k (2022: £2 456k) Although the trust reserve target has not been achieved, the trust continues to -work towards this target by
cnsurlng school budgets, and associated staffing levels and resources are being planned and managed. ¢f lcuwcly over the medium term. Trusteds however
may decide to redirect financial resource to arcos of priority and this has heen the tase during 2022/23.and going forward wheie resceves will be usid to
furthe support school fimprovement.

The restricted fixed asset fund held at 3ist August 2023 was £144,912k (2022: £146,287k) and the ciidosment fund held at 31st August 2023 was
£1,438k (2022: £1,438K).

‘The restricted pension fund’is in surplus tothe vilue of €64k (2022 deficii £3,300K) as at the year end. “The trust would expect that lhc cash flow Lffc‘.l of
the. pension reserve being in surplus would be a reduction: in falure coniribution rates across the medium term.

Total funds for the year are £159,178k (2022; £156,120K),

'lnvcxtmcnl‘ Policy
The. Acadcnm.s “T'rust Handbook (AT sels ot spcclﬁc.slly that trusices must have a caulidus approach 1o investments in lme with the handbook
principles. ‘The board of Irustées may invest 1o funher the trust’s charitable aims, but siust ensure invesiment risk is properly managed, When considering
an investment, the board prust.:
. act within its powers to invest as described in'its articles )
,» have an invesitment pohcy 10 manage and track its fidancial exposure, and ensuié value.for mioney
exercise care and skitl in invesiment dmlswus, tuking advice as appropn.uc from a professional adviser
eNsure EXpPosUre 1o investment nmducls is tightly controlled' so securily off funds takes precedence over revénuc miximisat mn
ensure-investment decisions are in the trusl’s best interests
review the Lrust’s investments aid. investment pohcy regularly,

NET rtgards the: successhul identification, monllormg and control of Fisk 1o be the prime eriteria by which the effectivencss of iis treasury managément
activities will be measured: Accorchngly the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on the risk: \mplmﬂlmns faced by the
lruxl.
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“The trust acknowledges thal eéffective (reasury managcmuu will provide. suppont towards the achievement. of iis vision and objectives, It is lhcrc[’orc
committed lo-thé principles of achicving value for money in treasury mnnagcmcnt and 16 employing suitable comprehicnsive performancc mcasurement
techniques, within the conlext of effective risk management,

-In drafling the policy, conszdcmuon has been glvcn Ao affirming that:

1. théré is a robust and transpirent case that j Jus'u fics.and clearly explains kccpung of not keeping reserves

2. the éffective management and control of risk are prlme objectives of the trust’s treasury mannj_.,cmenl activities,

3. the trusl s appetife for risk, including the appetite for any use of financial instruments i the prudent management of those risks; must be clearly
identificd within the strategy report and will affirm tha priority is given to seeurity and portfulio liquidity when investing weasury management
funds and cxplain how that will be carried out.

4. rcsponsnb:luy for risk management and control lies within the organisation and cannot be delegated to any outside individual or organisation, .

5. credit ratings should only be used ds a starding point when considering risk. Use should also be niade of markét data and information, the quality
financial press, information on government support for banks and the credit ratings of that governmeni support.

6.  the trust needs a Sound diversification policy with high credil quality counlerpariics and should ¢onsider sctting countiy, scetorAnd group limits,

7,  the treasury management policy must. be approved by the board and all investments reviewed by the audit and risk commiltee alongside the current

- financial s(alcmcnls presented.

8. trusices and the exceutive should be provided with access to relevant training as those charged with governance arc also pcrsonally fesponsible for
-ensuring they have the nécessary skills and training

9. officers involved in treasury managément must be explicily required to follow lrcnsury management policics and procedurcs when making
mv«.stmunl decisions on behall. of the trust

By managing fisk cffccuvclv. trustees can help ensure thatr
I, significant risks are known and nionitored, enabling trustecs to make Informed decisions and take timely action
2, the tnist makés the most of opportunities and develops them with. the confidence thut any risks. will be managed

3. forward and strategic planning ar¢ improved
4.- . lhe charity's uims are achieved more successfully

Reporting in its trustees' annual report on the steps the frust hs taken to manage risk helps to demionsteate the (rusl uumumablhw tn (hc regulators and
widee public. “The divetse nature of the secior and the trusts activitics means that NE'T faces different types of risk and levels uf"c\p(mug

The. policy agrees which invesiments the trust may use for thé prudent managément of ils treasury balances during the financial year under ihe categorics
‘of specified investments:and non-specified investments,
L spa.cnﬁcd mvcslmcnl; are those witha hlgh-lew.l credii quality and subject io 2 mmunlv limit of ane year, These'invesintents will be pennitted,

The lrusl‘s primary investnient objective is the security of the capital investment. The trust will mamxg,c all investmenis.to meet cash flow démands and o
achicve a reasonable return cominensurate with the proper levels. of security and hqmdny The risk. appetile of the (rust is low in order to-give priorily to
security of its investments and all invesimenis will be in Sterling,

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

In the privious two years, the trust underiook a fundamental revicw of risk management and introduced a new risk management system and reporting
incchanism, which was developed and implemented, and coitinues 19 he intrinsically linked dircétly Lo the dcvclopmml of the intemal scrutiny phn to be
underiaken by internal audit.

Whilst. fevels of risk and uncertainty continues io exist with regards future ehatiges in lovels of funding and inflation (utilitics and stafl costs) other risks
around safeguarding are being cffectively managed and mitigations in place.

More detailed and specific fi naitéial and non financial nxl\; that are managed throughout the year-are;

I, Liquidity risk: the trust mangdges its resources, mcluclmg sulficient working capital, so all its operaiing necds are met withaui lhc néed for any
external borrowmg A single. bank account for academics has been developed and this has proven to be o significant fctor in managing (his. risk,
Surplus cash is.invested through appropriate financial fnstriuments as'to maximise intercst income without incutring uxccs&w» risks,

2, .Imcrest raie risk: the inflation rate across the: UK has fisen significantly overthe last two years, with icreased costs in utilities.and cost of Tiving-
rises to salaries, the trust has,been able o miligate this risk within the Medium-term Financial Plan, whilst ensuring ihe trust remains a going

- concen, . . .

3. Credit risk: the trust is subject (o price inflation, but is funded by government alongside alk other dcademics and schools, and credit risk is therefore
¢onsideted Lo be negligible, "

4, Brexit the lrust continues and monitor the risks arid uncertainty around Brexit and uses the guldmcc fram central Governineint: (6- understand the

possible changing fandscape of the seotor and \wdu. :

Estates Managements the trissi Gontinues 1o monitor the visks argund ils. éstale. The trust reccives annunlly £1, 8 iillion in School Condllmm

Allocation funding (SCA) along-side the Devolyed Formula Capital (DFC) grant. A five-year strategic plan has been developed, troken down into

‘thrée categories; outstanding [zaring cnvironments, health and safety and beyond compliance, to ensure that asset cycles, mdiuluiamc and repairs

e consndurcd nlongsn(l(, new, bigiger projects. The trust has also devieloped a specification of works 1o ensurs that new academices joining the irust

ru:cwe signilicant investment 10 ensure that the standards it thosc academies meet the trust requirements and. sptuhmlmm that arc uséd across the

NET estate,

6. Olhcr corporate risks: thé trust continues to updaté is risk regisier fegutarly and reviews and inonitors cmerging issucs inthe secior, This includes

e risk of eyber fraud; reeruitment and ketention, GDPR and aruficial intcltigenee, The trust continues to manage these risks Wwith the appropriate:
sysicms-and. controls ihat it has invested ih over the medim terim,

.

Rlsk Management
Thé trist iy continuously moniioring and asséssing itg curientand future-risks and to identify and Tmplement sirategies for addressing risks. This process.
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allowed nsks to be scored, prioritised and re-assessed once controls had been established and i nally their lxkehhood of uccurrénce assesséd and means of
+ mitigation idemificd. ‘The trust board has revidwed the risks to which the trust is exposed, and considered in' particular those”relating to the strategic
. dcvclopmcm of the trust and its academics on-going performance, as well as us opcrnuonal acuvmcs and ns finances.

The significant positive shift in the approach Lo consndenng the risk and unceriaintics faced is further slrcnglhcncd by the risk register now bung linkéd
16 the work of intemal scrutiny, The work of interal scrutiny conéluded during the year with an average score of 90% (an increase on the previous year)
and from the scope of works provided dircct assurance to the risk register and the assessment of the risks faced that had been assessed by directors.

Trustces rccogmsc and support fully the nced for informed and effective systéms of intenial conlrol and risk management, In summary the key risks
identified and being monitored and managed are;
‘I The impact of student progréss and outcomes and other school improvement interventions
‘2. Staffing attendance and continued difficulties to recruit/retain staff. .
3. Continued cffective safeguarding of students as a result of academy risk’ assessments, e momlormg whilst using femole learning and academy
Designated Safeguarding Lead(s) interventions.

Fundraising

‘The trust encourages wider student 0ppor(umucs across all of its academies with the. trust apprmch to funding some of these trips and evenls cowing

from fundraising activitics,

‘The trust does not work with or use any commercial participators or profcssnonal fundraisers. Afl funds from fundruising aré recorded in the financial

ledger and any activitics and funds reccived are monitored by the academy principal. Any complaints regarding fundraising, should be referred to the
t trusts complainis policy. The trust does not promole any intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches and wishes to cnsure the safeguarding and

prolcamn of the public, including vulnerable people.

* Streantlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

N . T 1 September 2022 1 September 2021
UK Greenh £4s enti and energy usc data for the period . t0 31 August 2023 t0 31 August 2022
Energy consumplion used to calculate emissions (kWh) 18,361,057 20,933,251
Encrgy consump]ion break down (k\WVh)
s - : 12,086,684 14,185,523
5614343 R
. Elccrricity, ! 32’97 " 16,166,002
¢ Owncd transporl — Mini-buses e 16,241
-627,056
s Mileage claims 565,485
Scope | emissions Tn metric tonnes CO.¢ . )
Gas consumption 221100 2,589.43
Owned transport = Mini-| buses ) 9.24 4,07
Total Scope 1 LZZ_M_“‘. 2 593. 50
Scape 3 emissions in melric tonnes CO,e
Purchased UK Eléctricity 1.162.58 119238
Scopd 3 emissions’in metric tonnes COe )
WTT - Fuels 365,14 441,17
T&D Lossés ~ UK f'lu:lmuy 100.58 109.80
WTT - UK Eleciricily 257.70 311.26
WIT-UK !’lcclnu(y T&D Lusses 2229 ’
Busiiess travel in emplayee owned vehicles 163.16 13121
Total Scope 3 913.86 993 .44
Total gross emissions in melric tonnes COe 4.296.68 4,779.32
[ntengity ratio
Tonnes CO,€ per pupi) 0421 0447
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I, Thecnergy and carbon information is.not.included for those academics where a PI‘I arrangement is in phce due to timing issues in obtaining the
necessary KwH usage data required. from the Lacal Authority for the Streamlined Encrgy Carbon chon (SECR) calculation at year end. These
academies are Fletton, Kirk Balk and Walboitle,

2, For the academic year 2023-24, the trust will, on a morithly basis, seck (o obtain. the necessary KwH usage data for these academics from the
Local Adthoritics, allowing the SECR calculation to be completed in accordance with the Teporting réquiremenis and deadlines.

3 ; The SECR calculation docs nat include these acadcmics, and therefore the pupil numbers for those academics are not included so the: ratio is
consistent.

Quantification and Reporting Mcthodalogy::
¢ 'Wehave followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG chortiﬁg Protacol - Corporate
‘Standard and have used the 2023 UK Government'’s. Conversion Factors for Company Reporting,

Intensity measurement
-, . ean - - . e - y T S Ly
The chosen intensily measurement ratig is total gross ennsstons. n:metric tonnes CO,¢ per pupil, the recommended ratio for the'scctor,

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

.As p:m ofthe PF1 arrangement with Newcastle Clty Council, work is almost complete on Walbottie Academy becoming the fi rst carbon ricutral school
in thé country The (irst phasc is complefe, by msnllmg heat pump technology rather than traditional buukrs to warm up the.school,

“The trust continues to install smart meters, LED lighting and electric charge points across all sites, using the DFE encrgy funding. The trust conlmuu.s
to wtilise vidco conferencing technology for siaff mectings, to reduce ihe need to travel between sites, The trust has limited the choice of vehicles to

sclectric or hybrid thmughmn the car salary sacrifice scheme. As at the 31* August 2023 the percentage of cars m the trusts feet that are fully electric

sare 87%.

Plans for Future Peviods

The curreni fodus of the trust is firmly £ xed on our \'mon dutcomes focusséd, child centred. The arcas in summary o note for futire periods would be; |

1. Planied and significant continued invesiment Tn School lmprovcmcnl Finance and ICT, greater progress in school improvement, recruitment /
reiention of teachers and the NET shﬁ'wllggc to support continuous professional development

2, Changes in the current trust portfolic of académics would be after close-consideration by trustees in rélation fo the currenl growih sirategy, the
geography, current capacity and other due ditigence and mks to be evaluated as acadcm:c> are brokered

Details of significint events since the reporting date are ¢ontained in note 31 to the financial statements.

Auditor . . )
The appointment.of RSM UK Audit LLP has been considered by trustees and approved at the Audif and Risk Committce,

Statentent as to I)isclosurc of Information to the Auditor
The trustees have mnl irmed that;
I, * as far as they are aware, there is no rch.\anl audit information of which the auditor 5. unaware,

2. the trustees have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as trustees in order 1o make thunsclvcs aware of any
relevanf audit information and 10 establish lhm it has been communicated to the auditor,

The Trustees' report, incorporating a \lmll-f,lb rcpon was approved by ordes of 1hé board oflrusltcs as the compiany (hru:lnr* on D(h Dcu,mbcl 2023

M Sauders. . -«
Chuir of Trustees
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‘GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

“Seope of responsibility:

As lrusteeS, we acknowledge e have averall. cesponsibility for ensuring that Northein Education Trust his an effective and appropriate systém of control,
financial and otherwise: However, such a sysiem is dtsq_.,m:d {o manage rather (han climinate the risk of failure to achfeve business, objccuvcs :lnd can
provide only uasonablc dnd not absotute assurance: z\gamsl material misstatement dr loss.

As trusices, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DIE's Govermance Handbook’ and Competency Framework for Governance,
. : W U Lo s ) " : ! - - K

The board of trustees has delegated the day:to:day responsibility to the Chncf [xeculive, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring ﬁnancml controls conform
with the requiremeiits of both propricty and good financial management and in accordance.with the requirements and respénsibilitics assn;,ncd to it in the
funding agreemient between Northern Education Trust and the Scerctary of State for l-ducanon They are also responsible for feporting to the board of
trustces any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal contral,

Governance

The information on governance inclided herc supplements that described. jit ihe trusices” feport and in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The
board of trustees has formally met 7 times dunng the year,

(Aliéndance during hic yéar at meetings of the board of Wustees was as follows:

Trusice Mectings altended Out 6F a possible

‘M Sanders, Chairman. 7 -7
T Grieveson, Deputy Chair :
R2ern, Chief Execulive

.C Roberis, Vice Chair

'§ Duncan

JCapping

I Kelly *

1 Heaton:
"N Barkér

R Flack

ST h TR I~ O
SN NN R NN

Thé coverage of the boards ivork:

“The: trust board s uliimdiely responsible for-dverall éontrol and dircetion; m«.ludmg the momtounn of puform.mc(. and-resources. The board ensures that,
the-wrust operates effectively nnd within the agreed terms of aur internal govérmance and uphalds the approved vision and values. Trustees are dccountable
to external govemment agencies including the Depariment for Education {DfE), Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and Charity Commission
(CC) for the quality of the cducation, they provide and trave systems in place through which they ¢an assure themselves of quality, safety and. good
practice;

The board provides:

¢ Suuicgic lcadership: the board defines the trust vision: for hlgh qualily aid inclusive.cditeation in linc wnh its charitable objectives, i establishes
and fosters the trust’s cultureé and sets and chanipions the trust stralegy mcludmg dcli.rmmmg what governatice functions are dclu&alcd to the Jocal

) académy coungil.

. Accounlnblluy and assurance: the board has robust cffective oversight of the operaiions and pérformance, including the provision of cducation,

_pupll welfare, oversecing and ensuring appropriate. usc of funding and effective financial. performance and keeping the: cstate. safe. and well

miaintained N ' o ’ - k ' '

o Engagement: the Goard has stralegic oversight of relationships with. smkcholdm The bo‘\rd tivolves parents; schools and commumm.s so that
dccmon-nmkmg is supported by mcaningful engagément,

The board du.!cga(cs other matiers 10 iis sub-commilices (set oul b«.low) and exccutive powers which are recorded’ in the scheme of delegation,- The
development and impleméntation of new cansistent and. standardiséd school improvement models and processes under the Iudcrshm 0( the (,hu.f
‘Exceuwtive has provided trustees with, furiher oversight and offcred greater serutiny into outcomes dl\d the use of resources, The trust coitinues to-feview:
its governance structure and trustees against. DM, ESFA and CC guidance: The assessment and revieiv of governance is done promoting mlcgrﬁy and
.openness in.accordance with. the seven principles of pulic life (Nolan Principles)

“Plie Boards Performance

During the year the' trust has contisiued 1o indertake a comprehensive review of its governance structute, membership to the board (and sub-commitieés)
and its fecruitment -and commitment ‘1o continuously develop. irustes. Using the DAZ best practice documenis*(Governance Handbook. 2019 and’
Compcluwy Framework for Govérnance 2017) a self-assessment has been developed that all tustees have compleied and will fosm et of finy new
teustee tnduction and appraisal. A robust i uuung progiamme continues to be developed Wwith the: supprt of the NET StalT College, focussing on key wreas
such as safeguarding, to further support and divelop Trustees going forwurd and ensurc staiory responsibilitics arc met. The next review of the. thisi
buards performance and skifl set is set to {ake phace during 2023-24 and the tru:t has commissioned an extemal organisaiion o undertake this review.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The iwo DFE best practice publications used by the trust in its review st out the purpose of governance; which is to provide confident and sirong strategic
leadership Wwhich leads to robust accountability, oversight and assurance for educational, financial and overall performance. These principles are hased on.
a framework of 16 compctencics grauped into 6 key features of elfective governance (sce below diagram) and form the basis and structure of the new
board and sub-commiitee terms of reference ’

1. 8trateglc

teadership

In Setting direction

15, Culhwre, v@lises and sthos
1 Decision making

16_Callaborathe working withy
Wx’z‘; 5F stakaholdars and panners
s ¥ b el te. Risk management
£146.Evaluation e

> R

22 Staffing and parfoimance
managament
2. Extemal accountsbifity

Principlesand -
personalattributes

§.Compliance

Sa. Sintutory and coniractuat
reqirements

/‘/ 4, Structures L ‘

\ 42. Relos and responsibition

. 3. People .
3a. Bulding on affective team |

‘Trustees as pari of the governance review recognised the need to further sirengthen the links between the trust board and, its sub-committees and each
local academy council. An additional link role has been introduced for Information Govemance al trust board fevel only. This enables the Senior
Information Risk Owner (SIRO) who chairs the Information Governance Steering Group (IGSG) to report directly Lo the Chair of ARC who has taken on
this new link role.

Regularity and HR link roles are retained at trust board level only based on the terms of reference for the board and iis sub-commitiees.

Sundards, Safeguarding/Prevent, SEND, Health and  Safety and Estates, Careers and Information Governance fink roles coniinue to be established at
both board and academy council level. Training is facilitated specifically around ihese roles and annual conferences take place focusing on statutory
requirements and sector best practice.

During the year the Trust Board mei seven times, The Board continues to mainiain ellective oversight of funds in the following way:

e The Audit and Risk Committee continued to meet §ix times during the yéar with the manugement accounts being discussed al cach of these
mectings.

e The Coniinuity and Resilience Commitice met once during the year,

e The management accounts of the “Urist are sent o the Chairman of the trust on u monthly busis

*  Delegated authoritics o the CEQ and Chief Operating and Financial Officer as defined in the board approved Scheme of Delegation

e The Audit and Risk Commitice have complete oversight of the trust internal scrutiny programme

Conflicts of interest

‘The trusi manages conflicts of interest by obtaining a list of declared interests by each trustee, this is updated annually at the stant of each financial year,
This information is held on the trust website, The (rusi finance team also hold this information. and consult this docwnent when reviewing purchase
requisitions.

Should discussions take place at board level that conflici a trustee, the trustee will lcave the mecting so as noi to be involved. with those discussions:
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‘NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

‘GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

'l'hc Continuify and Resilience Committee (CRC) is asub-commiitee of the. Trist Board, CRC was initially dwclopcd in 2020 largely in résponsc to’
the:Covid pandemic-and nationial rcalncuons placed on the scctor. The trust board approved (in Junc 2020) to form a smaller group of trustees and create
.CRC 1o cffecuvely lead in tiimes of crisis and/or emergency.

CRC can be called by the trust chair, (or deputy chair in the chairs abscncc) if & crisis and/or cmcrg(.ncy occurs, The commitiee hns full dclcgalcd
authority from the'trust board in all areas of decision. makmg, :
I)urlng the year the terms of reference for the CRC were updated to-reflect the heed that there-aré occasions when,time-critical decisions need (o be made
between board meetings, Whilst the original terms of CRC were for emergency matters orly, il was recognised ihat board meetings. were not always
scheduléd at the right time to niake the decisions around future sponsorship opportunitics during a period of growth and so delegated the matiet 10 CRC.
CRC met once:during the year,

Attendance during the yéar at incetings was as Tollows;

“Frustee Meetings atteaded Qutofa pi;:wsih!‘c.
M Sanders. 1. |
T Grieveson r [
J Capping . &
R Tarn - . T

The-Audit aid Risk Committee isl also a sub-committee of the.main. bqard of trustéces. fts purpose is as lollows:

‘Overall

e Maintainan ovefsfg,h! of the Tmsl"s governance, risk management, internal control and value for‘moin.v (VM) framewark, T will report its ﬁnclings
-annually to ihe'board and the Chlcf Executive as a critical element of the “Trust’s. annual reporting rcqu:umams

o “The Audit Commitiee has no executive powers or opcrational responsibilitics/dutics

Inlcm’ll Control
e The Commilice shall ¢nsuré that the internal control systems, including dudil activitics, of the Trust and any of its subsidiarics is monitored actively,
md;pcndmlly and ohjccuw.ly in order to:
improve the cmcllvcnuss of the Trust’s internal coritrols.
Reinforce. the independerice and cflectivencss off the intemal audit I'unv.uon
_I’mv:dc a sounding board for Trust management on issues 6f concern in-connection with the Trust’s mlerI control systems.
Advise on. the reliability of the Trust's inforination systems and processes.
Review Trust financial stoiements and budgets (Revenue & Capital).
‘s Advise the Trust Board and CCSG on the appoiniment of imeral and external auditors gnd providers of key fi nancial wsu.ms i.6. Bank.and.
General Ledger.
*  Approve /eansider procuremeni recommiendations in tirie with Financial Rc.;,ul.mons
o Underpin the objectivity and independence of the external auditors.
¢ Increase siakeholder confidence in the objectivity and. fairness of lhc Trust's findncial reports-and. in the quality of the Trust's corporate governance.
& To provide-a medium of communication from the “Trust’s auditors 10 the Trust which is séen (o be independent of Trust mianagemicnt,
e Toensure that finanéial transactions are undertaken. jh accordunce with the Trust's financiaf regulations.

Risk Managemeni and Value for Money Framework

¢ ‘Toactasthe Trust’s Risk Management Group,

*  Réport on valué for mongy of the Trusi on a rq,u!ar basis considering felevant compardior reviclt the timelinéss-of, and fepons on, the effectiveness
of correciive action taken by the Trust’s management,

3 ,Rc.vu.\v and. approve the-statements: to be iriclided in thé anniial repont concunmg inteenal contiols and risk nanagement, prior (o consideration by
th¢ board; :

¢ Rekcive reports from éxtérnal badics for example thé: Education Funding Ag,mcy and National Audit Office, and consider any- issues raised along
A wlh mariagement responses and: action plans,

*  Reviewthe Trust’s codes of cenduit, cthics and ulatcd corporate responsibility policies ahd how ihese are communicaied and monuorcd and

*  Toreview stalf pension armngements.

Whistleblowing
e Review the udeyuacy-and seeurity of the Trusts arrungemenis*tor its employees and contraciors o rase congerns, i conlfidence, about possible

wrongdoing in finanial reporiiiig or other maters

Atendance during the vear at meetings was is ollows:
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A conipany limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Gavernance (continucd)

‘Trustee Meelings attended Out.of a possible -
J Copping - Chair s 6
J Kelty 6 6
N Barker 6 6
R Tarn, attenided in capacity as accounting officer 6 6

‘The. Curriculum Standards and Welfare Commulee is also'a Sub-commiittee of the main board of trustecs., fis purposc is to have dclcgmcd oversight
and scrutiny of the Trust’s quality of cducation provision, academic performance and welfare of students across all academics.

The Committee shall:

«  Ensure that pracesses exist to monitor and review progress of arcas delegated from the board for primarily school nnprov;mcnt against the agreed
vision. Focus will be given to the safeguarding and SEND link and PREVENT link to provide challenge and support to executive leaders.

. Establish mechanisms for enabling the board to listen, understand and respond to the voices of pupils and staff within the sector,

e Consider on behalfl of the board primarily arcas of school improvement; ensuring school improvemént. risks are aligned with (he trust vision and
improvement plans and appropriate intervention sirategies are in place, ’

Atiendance during the year ai mectings was as follows:

Trustee. * Meetings attended “Qut of o possihle
I Grieveson (Chair) | 6 6

.8 Duncan 4

] Heaton 5 6

I Kelly 5. 6

M Sanders 5 6

R Tarn, atiended in capacity as m.counhng officer 4 6

Review of value for mancy

As accounting officer, the Chief Excautive has responsibility for cnsuring that the academy irust delivers good value in the use of public resources , The
Accounnng Officer understands that value for money refers 1o the cducational and’wider societal outcomes, as well as cstate s.:l'ctv and management,,
achieved in rétumn for the taxpayer resources rccuvcd

‘The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports
1o the board of trustces where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Chief Exccutive as
Accounting Officer is personally responsible for the regularity and propriciy of public funds and cnsuring they are consistent with the purposes for which
padiament intended. The continuous facus on improved value for money can be soughi from the following examples below {which can be considered in
detail from the narrative within the Trusices Report):

1. The Trust, in Primary and Secondary performance has improved on fesulls in 2023 from the previous 6 years The ‘Trustees Report shares many of
these successes and inproved outcomes for children, which in summary are?

e Significant -mpro»mucms in secondary performance with 4+ Maths and Lnuhsh from 53% (2017) to 68% (2023) and 5+ Maihs and English from
33% (2017) 10 50% (2023)

e Ofsted resulis dgain highlight the improving position of the trust with the. charts below:
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money (continued)

Previous judgement | Currentjudgement

Primary Academies

Hilton Primary Academy

Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy
The Ferns Primary Academy
Whitecliffe Primary Academ

Badger Hill Primary Academy
Abbey Park Primary Academy
Merlin Top Primary Academy

[The Oak Tree Primary Academy
Norton Primary Academy

Mount Pellon Primary Acaderny 2

Secondary Academies

Dyke House Academy

[Grangefield Academy

North Shore Academy

Kearsley Academy

|Kirk Balk Academy

|Manor Community Academy

{Thotp Academy

|Biyth Academy

Red House Academy

Freebrough Academy ; LORRYS - |
Ibottle Academy 2

Helton Acodemy 3 Not Inspected

NININ NN

[ 5]

Wiw W INEIN M INN

~N

Wlwiwwlw|wiINn N

NN N NN N

Key:

1. Outstanding

2.Good

3. Requires Improvement
4. dequate

2. The trust. MAT Summary Evaluation, undertaken by OFSTED and ouilined in the Trustees Repori, highlighted a vast number of significant

achicvements since the last focused review, This includes:

e Trustees and other Icaders have iransformed how the trust operates

o Schools that have recently joined the trust have undergone monumental improvemients that are life-changing for pupils and stafl’

¢ Overall, published outcomes across the trust are exceptionally strong

e In 2017, trust leaders needed to secure improvements quickly. Many ways of working across the trust. were prescribed. Through exceptional

leadership from the CEO and other lcaders, staff arc now much more able to contribute (o trust policies and do so throughout the trust

¢ Leaders sce the trust as “one school over many sites®. There is no real distinction between trust leaders and school leaders, Leaders at all levels are

ambitious for pupils

‘The corporate performance in ensuring Value for Money (VEM), probity and propriety continues. This is evidenced from the improved internal
audit scores for 2022/23 of 90%. Renewed and new contracts in key areas that have delivered VIM, savings and greater quality in goods / services
and recognition from external praviders, including printing and signage, internal scrutiny and carcers guidance.

Curriculum Led Financial Planning has driven the budget scuting and medium-term financial planning of academies. The introduction or application
of a contact ratio of 0.79 (contact ratio is the percentage of time a teacher will spend in front of students as an average) and in secondary academics
a bonus of 8% (bonus is a measure of teacher time above or below a refercuce ling, historically, the reference line has been the teacher time required
to give an average class size of 27) ensures financial viabilily and sustainability with curriculum breadth and student pathways across subjects.

The trust is able o demonstrate: how it has effectively used capital funding to ensure tha the trust estate is safe, well-maintained and complies with
regulations. During the year the trust received £1.803 million of School Condition Allocation (SCA), £0.620 million Energy Efficiency Funding and
£0.316 million of Devolved Formula Capiial (DFC). The trust has undertaken a number of projects which are: outlined in the trust capital
programme, which include the redevelopment of North Shore Academy, Kearsley Acadeiny and Thorp Academy, to accommodate increase in. pupil
numbers, the transformation of Blyth into an cutstanding leaming environnent, safeguarding projects at Norton Academy, Red House Academy,
The Ferns Academy, The Grangeficld Academy, Whiteclific Aademy, Dyke House Academy and Ouk Tree Academy. ‘The trust has also used the
Energy Efficiency Funding to undertake LED upgrades at & number of academices, Boiler Management System Upgrades. across ihe trust and an
increase in eleciric charging points at a humber of academy sites.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee).

.GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

- . -

The purpose of the system of internal cantral

The system of intcrnal control is designed to munage risk (o a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failurc to achieve pollcncs aims and
ObjCC!WeS It can, therefore, only provxdc reasonable and ot absolute assurance of clfcctiveness, The system of interal control is based on an on-going
pracess designed to identifyt and prioritise ihe risks to the achievement of academy lrust policies, aims and objectives, (o evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should lhcy be realised, and to manage them cfficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control
has been in place in Northern Education Trust for the year I September 2022 1o 31 August 2023 and up to the date of appraval of the annual report and
financial statements,

Capacity to handle risk

“The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy irust is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that
have been implemented to mitigate those risks. "The board of trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the dcademy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year | Scptember 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

The risk and control framework

The-academy' trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a frameworke of regular management infonmation and administrative procedures
including the scgregation of duties.and a system of delegation 'md accountability. In p'\mcular it includes:

e  Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with.an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the -

Board of Trustees

*  Regular trusteé “reviews of reports-which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
cxpenditure programmes

¢ Selting targets lo measure financial and other performance

¢ Clearly defined purchasing (assct purchase or capital investment) gu:d;lmcs

e Dclegation of atithority and segregation of duities

e Identification and management of risks

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internaf scrutiny function and has decided:

e To ..\ppmnl Beevers and Struthers as internal auditor with a proven lmck rccord for managmu mlunnl scrulmy programs l'or large multi academy-

trusts’

»  Todevelop internal scrutiny to consider not only areas of finance but go beyond this into other arcas. ol non-financial activity und operations

o To seamlessly link the risk register and work of iniernal scruting (o beiter understand the assessment of risk and then the risks and opportunitics
faced over time

The work of internal scrutiny muludcs giving advice on both financinl and non-financial matters and pcr(ormmg a range of checks across the trust. In
particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

o Testing of payrofl and MR systems

e “Testing of Financial Management, Financial Admnmslnuon and Procurement

e Testing of Business Continuily, Risk Management, [CT, GDPR and Health and Safety
e Tésting of School improvement and Safeguarding -

e Testing of trusi performance against the Academies Trust Handbook

On a quarterly basis, the internal auditor reports to lhc board of trusices through the Audit and Risk commiltee on the operation of the systems of control
and on the discharge of thé trusiees’ financinl responsibilitics and annually prepases an annual swumary feport to the commitiee outlining the areas
reviewed, key findings, recommendaiions and conclusions (o help the committee consider actions and 3SSESs year on year progress .

The academy trust can confirm that the internal auditor delivéred their sehedulé bf work as planned With.ho material ontrol issues identified
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A‘conipany limited by.guarantée)

‘GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

s .
Review of effectiveness

.As Aécounting Officer, the. Chief Exccutive has responsibility for }cvicwing the cffectiveness of the system of internal conirol, During the year in
* -question'the review has been informed by: -

. The work of internal séruliny; ,

) * The financial managcmcr:l and governance self-assessmenf process or the school resource management sel f-assessment tool,

. The 'work of the executive managers within the -academy trust who have: responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal
control framework, ’ ) ’

. * The work of the éxternal auditor;

“The Accéwiting Officer has been adviscd 6f the implications of the fesult of their review.of the systens ‘of iniemal conifol by the Audit and Risk
Commi(te¢ and a plan fo address auditor recommendations and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place,

Approvéci by'érd:rr of the members of the Bozud of Trustees on 12ih December 2023 and ;ign‘c'd' on their behalf by:

- / Cra e
M Sanders - RTamCBE )
-Chair ofl’nxst__cés *Accounting Officer
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST'
imited by guararitée)

(A Conmpany

'STATEMENT ON REGULARITY; PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accoummg officer of Nonhcm Education Trust | have considered my  responsibility to nnufy the acadcmy trust board of trustces and thc qucauon &
, Skills Funding Agcncy (ESFA) of material lrrcgulanly, lmpmpnely and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all fundmg, lncludmg for éstates
snfcly and management, under lhc fundmg agreement between the academy trusi and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my conmdemlmn I,
have had’ due regard.to'the rcqulremcnls of the Academies Trust H'\ndbook 2022 including responsibilitics for esiates sal'c(y and management.,

"1 confinm that 1 and the acadcmy (Fust board of trusices-are ablé © 1dcnl|fy wny material lrrct,ulm or. lmpropcr use of all funds by the dcadcmy trusi, or
malerial nun-comphancx. withthe terms and conditions of l'undmg under lhc academy trust's’ fundm;, agfeement and the Academics Trust Handbaok
-2022.

[ confirm that no instances of matérial lrrcgulamy, impropricty or l'undmg non-complnncc h'\vc been dlscoun.d to date. If any msl«mcu.s .m. |d\.n\|ﬁcd
after the datc of this statement, these will be notilied to the bo.urd of trustees and ESFA. '

l/ Comnr
‘R Tori R

Accounting Officer
a(e 12th Decémber 2023

-
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A coipany limited by guarautee)’

ST ATEMENT OF, TRUSTEES' RESPOVSIBIL]T[ES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023,

“The Trustees (who are also the divectors of the charitablé company for the purposcs of company 1aw) are responsible for prepanng the Trustees' rcpori
which incorporates the Directors' report and Strategic report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published
by the Education and Skills. Funding Agency, Uniled Kingdom Accounlmg, Standards (United ngdom Generally Acccpt»d Accounting Practice) and

applicable law and rcgulallons

Company law requires the Trusiées. (o prepare financial statements for cach financial year; Under company ‘law, the Trustees must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisficd that lhcy give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of fesources, mcludmg its income and expenditure, for that period, In’preparing these. fi mncnal stalements, the Trustees are

required to;

e

buslncc.s‘

The Trusiees are rcsponsxblc for keeping

Select suitable accoummg policies and then apply them consnstenlly
Observe the methods and principles of the Chatitics SORP 2019 and lhc Academics Accounts Direction 2022 102023;
Make judgments and acéouniing estimates that are reasonable and pmdt.nt '
‘State whether apphcabh. ‘UK z\ccounlmg Standards have been followed, subject to any malterial departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statcments;

Prcparc the financial stalements on the going concern basis unfess it is m'lppropnalc to presume that the chanlab(e conipany will contiriue in

dcqualc accounlmo records that are sufficieni to qhownnd e\plum the chanl‘\blc company’s transactions dnd
-dnsclosc with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them (o ensure ‘that the financial statements
'comply with the Companies Act 2006, They are also mponsnbh. for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for takmg reasonable

ﬁlcps for the prcvenuon and detection of fraud and other l(rcgul.mhcs

The Trustees are n:sponsnbk for c.nsurmg, that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and oiher v..omr'ols which conform
with the requiremenis both of propmlv and of good financiul management, “They are also nspomlbls for ensuring grants reccived from ESFA/DIE have

been appl ied Ior the purposes intended,

The Trustees are résponsible for the maintenancé and mlcgrlly of the u:rpomt; and financial information included on the charitable company's website,
Lugnslanon in the United kmgdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions,

v

(vgeme i res s entsan e,

M Sanders
Chair of Trustees .
- Y

Loy oe
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(A compiny limited by guarasitee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

.Opiuiun'

We have audited the financial stalcmcnls of Northéin Education Trust (lhc *charitable company') for the year énded 34 /\ugust”023 which: comprise thé
- Statement. of Financiat Activities (lncorporaung the Income and. Expendllurc Account), the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows:and notésto the
‘financial statements, mcludmg a summary of significant accounting policies. The fit nancial reporting framewotk that has been apphcd in their preparation.
is applicable law, Uniied Kingdom Ac.counlmg Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicablé in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” ('Umlcd Kingdom Generally Accepled Auounlung Practice), and. the Acadéniics Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Ag,ency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. “givea lruc and Gir view of (he state of the charitable company's affairs as af 31 August ; 2023 and of its mcommg resources and upplxcnllon of
resSOurces, mcludmg its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

have becn properly prcp.md in accordance with.Unitcd ngdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prncucc

have bx.cn prcpnrcd in accordance with the. reuirements of the: Compamc< Act 2006; and

have been prcpared in accordance with the Academics Accounts Dircction issucd by the Education and Skills Funding Agescy.

.

. o

Basig for apinian

We canducted ‘our audit in accord'mcc with Titernational Standards on Auditing. (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and apphcab|c taw, Our, rcsponelblllucs under thos¢
standards arc furthcr described in the Auditor's responsibilitics for the. audit of the. financial statements section of our seport, “We are independent of the
charilable company in accordance. with. the cthical requircinents that arc rélevant to our audit of the financial statemenis-in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Repoiiing Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical rcspomlbllllm in accordance with thesc requircments, We
bclrcvu that the audit cvndcncc we have obtained is suffi cncnl and 1pproprm1c 10 prov:dc a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going coucern

Ih auditing the financial siateménts, we Irm. congluded that. the |rus(us’ use of the g E,omg concern. basis of accounting in the. preparation of the fi mncml
stalements is approprmlc

Baséd on.ihe-work we have perl'ormcd we have not identified any material uncerlainties n.Lan fo cvents or conditions that, individually or collecti \"cly
may cast significant doubt on ihe charitablé company's ability 1o continue as a going concern for a period of af lcast Iwclvc months from when the
financial stalcmcms are authorised for issue.

‘Our tesponsibilities and the responsibilitics of the trusieds wiil respéct to goirig éonicern arc duseribed inthe refevant sections of this report:

Other information

The olht.r mfonnallon compnscs thein formaiion included in the lru#lcts’ Report olher than the f nancial statcments and our, Audnlnr’s report thereon. The
trisstées are responsible for the other information contdined within the Trusices' Report. Our opinion on the financial statements doés.not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise. explicitly- stated in our repoft, we do.not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

Qur rcsponsnbnluy is to read the oiheér ml'omnuon and, in doing so, consider whether the olhcr information is nmlcnally mconénslonl willt the financial’
stalcments of our knowledge obtained Tn tie course of the audil, or otherwise appears, io be nntcnally ‘misstated, T we ndenuﬁ' such material
inconsisiéncies or apparent niaterial. missiatéments, we are required (o determine whether. this gww rise o & material misstaiement. in the financial

sidtcments themselves, I, hased on the: work we havc pcrl’ormcd we. conclude that there Ts 3, mmuml missiatement of this other informatian, we are:

‘sequired (0 Féport |h'|( fact,
We have néthing to-réport in this regard,

Opinibu on othier matters presciibed l))\"thc'(.‘émpnnies 1‘:1’2006‘

In-our 6;iinfbi1;f based on thework underiaken in"lhe course. of the audit?

. the infoimation gl\’LIl in the Trustées’ Report, which includés ihe Directors’ Rupml and. the ‘Stiategic Ihpor! prepared for the purposes of
company lawy, 1o the: ‘financinl year for which the financial stalements dre prepared is cénsist nt. wiih the fir I statements; aid.
. the: Dlrcclom Répori and the Steaicgic Réport has been prepared in accordance \\'Ilh applicable legal requirements,

K it i 5 s i e et
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'NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
/(A:company lmnted by: guarantee)

lNDEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH ERN EDUCATION TRUST
(CONT[N UED)

Maters on which we are required to report by exception.

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obiained in the course of the audit, \ve have not identificd
material misstaterments in the Directors’ Repaort or the Strategic Report included within the Trustees' Report...
A bt e

We ‘huvc‘nolhingbm report.in respect of ihe following matters in relation io which the Companies Act: 2006 requires tis to report (o youif, in our gpinion:

. adcquate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been réceived fiom branches not visited by us; or
the financial staléments are not in. agreement with the accounting records and’ returns; .of

-ceriain disclosures of trusices’ remuncraiion specified by law are: not made; or.

we have not.réceived all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

o s -0

Responsibilitics of trustees

As explained more-fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities sét out on page 28, the trustees (who act as trustees for the. charitable activities of the
charitable compaiiy are also the direclors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the fi nancial
istatements and for being satisfied that they give a iruc and fair view, and for such internal conirol as the irustecs determine i is necessary ta cnable the
preparation of financial siatéments that arc free from material missiatement, whether due io fraud or error

In preparing the.fi nancml statements, the trustees are responsxble for assessing lhc acadcmy trust's ab;lny to continue as a going concern, dmclomng, as
applicablé, matters related io going concern and using the going, concern basis of accounling unless the trustees cither intend to liguidaie the charitable
company or 1o cease operations, or have no realistic allemative but.to do so,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 6f the finnncial statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalemens as a whole are frec from material misstatement, whether due io
fraud or error; and to issuc an Auditor's repori that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurancé is a high level of asstrance, but is not a guarantee thatan
audit conducted in an.cordamc with ISAs (UK) will always deteci a malerial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can aris¢ from {raud or erfor and
are consnducd maetial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected (o influence the économic decisions of users taken on the
basis of thesc financial statcments,

‘The exient to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irrégularilics, includiug fraud

Irregularitics arc instancés of non-compliance with laws and regulations: Fhe objectives of our audil aré to obiain sufficient appropriate audii evidence
regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a dircct effect on the deterinination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, lo perform audit pracedures (o help identify instances of non-compliancé with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on
the finuncial statements, und to respond appropriately (o identified or suspecied non-compliance with faws and regulations ideniified during the audit.

In relation to fraud, the objectives of Gur audit dre io fdentify and asséss the risk of malerial misstatement of the. financial statements duc to fravid, lo
obtain sufficicnt appropriate audit evidence regarding the: assessed risks of material misstatement duc. to fraud through designing and implementing
appropriate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspeeted fraud identified during the audit.

Howcever, it is the primary rs.spnnsnb:hty of management, with the oversight of those chirged with governance, (0 ensure that the entily’s operations are
conducu.d in.accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and for the preventjon and detection of fraud,

Inidentifying and assessing risks of maierial misstatement in respect. of frregularitics, including fraud, the audit engagement team:

«©  obuincd an understanding of the:nature.of the sector; including ihe legal and regulatory framesvark that the charitable company opeérites in and how
the charitable company is complying with the fegal and regulatory framework;

‘. mquucd of management, and those: chargcd with goverance; about their own identificationund assessment of the risks of lrn:nul'lrlhcs including
airy’known aclual, stspected or alleged ingtances of fraud;

- discussed matters about non-compliance wiih laws and regulations and how fraud might eccur including assessment of how and. where thé financial
statements. inay be susceptible 10 fraud,

As-a resiilt of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a dircet impact on the financial statements are FRS 102,

Charitics SORP (FRS 102), Companies Act 2006, Fducation and Skills Funding Ageney's Academy Trust Handbeok and Academies Accmmta-

Dnrcc.hpn We performed audit procedures (o détcet non-compliances Which may have a inaterial impact on the financial staéments, which included
reviewing the financial statements including the Trusices™ Repor

“The most significant taws and regulations that have an indirect xmmcl on ihe financial staiements are those in relation 1o the Education Inspection

Framewsrk under the Education Acl 2005 (as amended), Keeping. Childeen. Safe fn Educaiion under the Education Act 2002, the UK General Data
Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and the Data Protcction Act 2018, We pierfurmed audit procedures to inguire of minagement and those charged with
goveninnce wheiher the charitable company is-in compliance with these law and regulations and inspected correspondence “with re gulalory aulhonhc
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(CONTINUED)

‘The. audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the arca where the financial statements were most susceptible to
material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included but were not limited to testing manual journal entries and other adjustments,
evaluating the business rationale in relation to significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into outside the normal course of business, and
challenging judgments and cstimates.

A [urther description of our responsibilitics for the audit of the financial slatements is located on the Financial Reporting Councif's website at;

www, fre.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditor's report.

Use of our report

This repori is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might siaie to the chariiable company's members those matters we are required 10 state to them. in an Auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law; we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyene other than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this repon, or for the opinions we have formed,

RSM UK Audit LLP

Claire Leece (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalfof

RSM UK Audit LLP Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Central Square, 5th Floor,

29 Wellington Sireet, Leeds

LS| 4DL

Daie: 14/12/23
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'NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST.
(A'company limited by guarantee)

lNDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKlLLS FUNDING AGENC\’

=y
‘Conclusion

We have carried out.an cngagement in accordance wiih the terms of our engagement letter dated"23 May 2022 and further to the requirements of the
Edugaiion and Skills Funding Agency ("ESFA’) ds included in the éxiant Framework and Guide for External Audiiors and Reporting Accouniants of,
Academy Frusts, 10 obtain. limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income reecived by Northern Education. Trust during the
peried 1 September 2022 lo 31 August 2023 have béen applied to the purposcs idéntified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to lh(,
authoritics which. govern them,

In the couirse of our work, nothing has comie 1o our attention which suggests that in all maierial respects the expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period | September 2022 10 31 August 2023 have not been applied td purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not
conform to-the authoritics which govern them..

Basis for conclusion

‘The framework that has been applied is sct oul in the extant Framework and Guide for Extemal Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts,
We are IlldprlldLnl of Northern Education Trust in accordance with the éthical requirements that are applicable to this engagenent and we have fulfilled
-our cthical réquireménts in accordancé with thésé rt.qutrcmcms. We belizve the assurance evidence wee have obtaincd is sufficient to provide a basis for
our conclusién.

Responsibilitics of Northern Education Trust's accounting officer and trustécs

The accounting officer is-responsible, under the requirements of Northern Education Trust's. funding agreement with the Su,n.wry of State for Education
dated 4 July 20!2 and the Academy Trust Flandbook, extani fram 1 Sl.plcmbu 2022, for ensuring thai cxpenditure disbursed and income received dre
upplicd fot the purposes intended by Parliaimént and the firancial (ransactions conform to the authoritics which govern them, The accounting officer is
-also responsible for preparing the Statement of Regufarity, Propricty and Compliance, The trustees (who arc also the dircctors of the charitable company
for the purposes of compuny law) arc responsible: for the propcr conduct, and financial operation of Northern Education Trust and appointmeni of the
accounting offi icer,

Reporting Accountant's rcspnns&ibiiilies for r'cporling on regularity

Our rcsponmbllntlus for this engagement are s.smhhshcd in the United Kingdonr by our profession’s cthical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance
and repori in accordance with our engagement leiter and the requirements of the extant. Framework arid Guide for Exicrnal Auditors antl Reporting
Accountants of Academy Trusts,

The objective of a limited assurance cengagement is lo perform such procedures as.to obtain information and explanations in ordif to provide us with
sulficicit appropriate evidenct to express @ negative conclusion on regutarily. A limitéd assurance engagement is more limited in scope thait a réasonable:
assurance engagement and the procedurces perfornied vary in nature and timing ffom, and ar¢ less. in extent than for a reasonable assurance engagement;

t.mbcquu\tly alimited assurance engagement does not ¢nable us 16 obtain assurance th.\l we \vould become aware. ofall significant matters that might be
idenificd in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a posilive opinion,

"We report to you whether angthing has come Lo our aitention in carrying out our work which sug 280s1S that in ail material respects, expenditure disbursed

and income received duning lhe period | Scplcmlscr 2022 10 31 August 2023 have not been npplu:d to purposcs intended by Parliament or that the
financial tmnsactmm do not conform 1o the authorities which govern them.

Our wark-included ideftification and assessmént 6f the design and operational cffectivencss of (he controls, policies and procédures that have been

‘implemented to ensure compliance with the lramework of authorities-including the specific requirements of the funding agreement with the Secretary of

Siate for Education,, the Academy ‘Frust Handbook 2022 puhl»;hcd by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and high level financial contral arcas
where we ideniified a risk of malerial irregularity is likely lo arise, 1t also included arcas assessed as presenting a higher risk of unpropncty We
undentook detailed testing, on a sample basis, based on the identificd areas where a material |rrcg,ulnmy fs likely to arise, or potential impropricly where
such arcas are in respect of conirols; policies and pmccdums thai: apply o cldsses of wansactions, Qur work. wvas und-.rmken ‘with due regard 1o the
*Evidence 10 support conclusion on regularity” guidance in the extant Framework and Guide for Exteniaf Auditors and Keporting Accouitants of
Acudemy Trusts,

This work was. integrited with our undit on the financial siatéments-and evidence was also derived from the conduct of that audit 10 the éxtent it SUpports:
the regularity conclusion;

« Page 32




NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company llmlted by’ guarantee)

lVDEPENDENT RE PORTING ACCOU\'TANT S ASSURANCE RBPORT ON REG ULARITY TO NORTH!ZR‘I
EDUCATIOV TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED) '

Use of our, report

’nxf§ report is made solely to Northern Education Trust and the ESFA in dccordance with the. terms of our engagement letter dated 23 May 2022, Our
* "work. has been underiaken so that we might state to the Northern Education Trust and the ESFA those. matters we are required to state.in a report and for
no other purposc. To the fullest extent permitted by law, e do not accept or assume responsibility io anyonc other than Northt.m qucatlon Trust and the
l:SI'A for our work, for thﬁ report, or for the concluslon we have formed.

RSM UK Audit LLP

RSM UK AUDIT LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Central Square, Sth Floor,
29 Wellington Street, | l_ccds
‘LS14DL.

Dac:  14/12/23




NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AC(_ZOUNT)
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and fosses recognised in the year,

The nates on pages 37 to 71 form part of thesc financial statcmenis,

Unrestricted Restricted  Restrictéd fixed  Endowment Total Total
funds funds asset funds funds funds funds
2023 - 2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
incom,c and endowments
from:
Donations and capital grants:

Donations and capital grants 2 173 931 2,143 - 3,247 2,253
Transfer.in on conversion 25 409 (431) 1,474 - 1,452 -
Other trading aclivities 3 945 - - - 945 652
Invesiments 4 482 - - - 482 4

Charitable activitics:

Funding for the academy _

trust's cducational opefations S 2,342 106,184 - - 108,526 » 96,280
Total income and ; -

eadowments 4,351 106,684 3,617 - 114,652 99,186
Expenditure on:

Charitable-actjvities:

Academy Trust educational \

operations 6 2,830 107,895 5!643 - l)"l.6,368 107,913
Total expenditure 2,830 107,895 5,643 - 116,368 107.913
Net income/(expenditure) 1,521. (1.211) ,(2,026) - (1,716) (8.727)
‘Transfers between funds 18 - (651) 651 - - -
Net movement in funds

before other recognised _
gains 1,521 (1,862) (1,375) - (1,716) (8,727}
Other recognised gains:

Actuarial gains on defined

benefit pension schemues 27 - 4,774 - - 4,774 58,678
Net niovement in funds 1,521 2912 (1,375 - 3,058 49.951
Reconciliation of funds:

“Total funds brought forward 9,239 (844) 146,287 1,438 156,120 106,169
Net movement in funds- 1,521 2,912 (1.375). - 3,058 49,951
Total funds carried : —

forward 10,760 .2,068 144,912 1,438 159,178 156,120
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"NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
* (A comipdny limited by giss dutee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07189647

‘BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Fixed assets

_Intangible asscts
Tangible asscts

Current asscts

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

-Creditors: amounts (alling duc within onc year

Net current assets

Total assets less curreat liabilities

Creditors: amounts. falling due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension asset / liability

Defined benefit pension scheme gsset / tiability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust

Endowment funds
Réstrictc{l funds:

Fixed asset funds

Restricied income funds

Restricted Runds excluding pension liabilily { asset
.

Pension resérve

Fotal restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Totil funds
r

chall, by:

Chair of Trustees

‘Note

27

‘5

2023

£000

60

143,448

143,508 .
3,983
21,250
25,233
1(9,627)

15,606

' 159,114

159,114

64

.

159,178

1438
144,012
2,004
146,916
64

146,980

10,760

159,178

© 3,423
20412

23.835
9,035)

146,287
2,456

148,743
-(3.300)

2022
£000

75
“144,554

"144,629

114,800

*159,429
')
159,420
- (3.300)

156,120

1,438,

145,443
9,239

156,120

ngjal statciments on pages 34 (o 71 were approved by the trustees, and duthorised for issuc on 12th December 2023 and are ignéd on

Pagé3s,
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'NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST"
‘,' (Awrgb_ilfpanyyiirn’l'ftvéd by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS _

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

~Cash flows from operating activities
*Net.cash (used: in)/provided by operating activitics
'Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

" Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year®
Cash ;md cush equivalents at the beginning of the year

-(Z:isil and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note |

20
22

21

23

2023 - 2022
£000 £000.
(1,545) 2,141
2392 - (1,406)

©) (17)

838 718
20412 19,694
©"2i,250 20,412
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.

Accounting policics

1.t

12

13

1.4

A summary of the: principal accounting policics adopted (which have been applicd consistently, excepl where noled),
judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Company status

Northern Bducation Trust is a charitable company (the ‘academy lrust’). The address of the trust’s principal place of
business is given on page 1. The nature of the trust's operalions arc sct out in the: Trustees' Report.

‘Basis of preparation of financial statcments

‘The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefii entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under
the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities
preparing their ficcounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland

-(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounis Direction 2022 to 2023 issucd by ESFA, the Charities

Act 2011 and the Companics Act 2006.

'[‘hc financial statements are presented in sterling wh,icl} is also the functional currency of the academy trust.

Monetary amounts in these financial staements are rounded to the ncarest whole £1,000, except where aiherwise indicated.
The principal accounting policies adopted ar€ sét out below,

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate. i.¢. whether there are any material uncertainties related
to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubi on the ability of the academy trust lo continue as a going concern.

“The trustces make this assessiment in respect ol a period of ai least one year from the daile of authorisation for issuc of the

financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foresceable futire and there are no matcrial uncertaintics about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, thus they continue 10 adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the académy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the
amount can be measured reliably.

Transfer on conversion

Where assels and liabilitics are received by the academy trusi on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are
wmeasured at fair value aud recognised in the Balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of dwnership pass to the
academy trust. An cqual amount of income. is recognised as a transfer on conversion within 'Income from Donations and
Capital Grants' 1o the net assels received.

Identifiable assets and liabilitics are translerred in for nit consideration. The substance of the transfer is that of a gift and

has been aceounted for on that basis, The transfer is analysed as unrestricted, restricted general and restricted fixed assets.

Where net liabilites arc transferréd an amount equal o the net linbilities transferred is rt.uogus\.d as a transfer on
conversion within expenditure (.harmble Activitics.- Acadeny lransfer in on conversion.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A éompany lir‘iiiigdbjr guarintes) -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting palicies (continucd)

15

i.6

1.7

LY

110

Grants receivable

Grani income is included in the Statemeni of Financial Activitics on a receivable basis. The balance of income reccived for
specific purposcs but not expended during the period is. shown in the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet, Where income is
rectived in advance of mu.tmg any px.rform'mcc-rclatcd conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income
and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued. ' '

Gencral Annual Grant is recognised in [ull in the Statement of Financial Activitics in the year fof which it is receivable and
any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and secognised as a liability.

Capital grants are rccogniscd when there is entitlement, when performance-related conditions have been mei, and arc not

-deferred over the life of the asset on 'which they arc cxpended. Unspent amounts of capital gmnl are reflected in the balance

shcct in the restricted fixed asset {und.
Donations

Donations arc recognised on a reccivable basis (where thiere.are no performance-related conditions), where the receipt is
probablc and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

- Other income,. including the. hire of l1ul|l|cs 1$ recognised at fair value of the consideration rt‘cuvul or réccivable in the

period it is reecivable and (o the extent the :\cadunv trust has provided the goods or services.
Interest reccivable
Interest receivable is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis.

Expenditure

Txpenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer cconomic benefit to a third party, it is

probable that a transfer of cconomic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be

measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of dircel costs

and shared costs, including suppori costs involved in undertaking cach activity. Dircet costs atiributable to a single activity
are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute.to more than oné activity and support costs which are
noi attributable to a mngl-. activity are apportioned beiween those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Central stalY costs arc allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on ihe portion of ihe asset’s
use.

Expendiwre on raising funds. includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust 1o raise funds for its chavitable
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities cvents and non-charitable trading.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the academy irust's educationa) operations including support costs
and these costs relating to the governance of the academy trust appointed to charitable activitics.

All éxpentliture is inclusive of irrccoverable VAT,
Intangible asséts

fntangible assets costing £3,000 or more are capitaliscd and recognised when future cconomic benefits are probable and the
cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably,

Titangible asscts are initially recognised at cost and ar¢ subscquently measured at cost uet -of amoriisation and any
provision lor impairment.
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'NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A coinpariy limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policics (continued)
1.10 Intangible asscts (continued)
Amortisation is provided on the following basis:
Computer software - 20% to 33.3% straight line basis
1.11 Tangible fixed asscts

Assets costing ‘more than £5,000 are capitalised and arc cairied at cost, -nct of dcprccimion and any provision for-
+impairment. Subscquent cosls are capitalised only when it is probable thal such ¢osts will gencrate future economic
benefits. All other costs of repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities as incurred.

Where tangible fixed asscts have been acquired with the aid of spécific grants, cither from the government or from the
privite sector, they are included in the Balance sheet. at cost and depreciated over their expecied useful economic Hile.
Wheré there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the relatéd grants arc
credited to a restricted fixed ‘asset fund in the Statement of financial aclivities and carricd forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation” on the relevant assets is charged ditrectly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed asscts have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to
the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at ratcs. calculated to write off ihe cost of these asscls, less their
estimated residual value, over their expected. useful lives on the following bases:

Leuschold property += 2%.to 15% Straight line basis of over the life of the: fease i
o shorter .

Furniture and fixtures + 25% straight line basis

Computer équipment - 25% straight line basis

Motor vehicles - 25% straight line basis

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting dale, afier estimated costs of disposal, for the asset as if it
-were at the age and in the condition expected at the end ol its uscful life.

A review for impairment of a fixed assct is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
-of any fixed assel may nol be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed asscts and their recoverable
-amounts are recogiised ds impairments. ' fmpairment losses arc n.cognmd in the Statement of Financial Activities
(mcorporatm;, income and cxpcn(lllur;. au.ounl)
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i.n2

113

l,lﬂf

.16

Leaschold property

Leaschold properiies arc recognised in the balarice sheét al theit depreciated replacement cost as specialised properties (in -

accordance with FRS 102 section 17). It is deemed uppropriate to capitalise lcaschold properties as the organisation will
have full usc of the asset for its uscful economic life.

Where leaschold properties represent donated assets they are recognised in the Balance Sheet at fair value.

‘The fair value is determined through calculation by an independent expert; or historic cost transferred from previous Local
Education Authority body; or internal valuation.

In accordance with FRS 102 section 27 where an event or circumstanée ariscs thal may indicate that the carrying value of
fhe asset is nof recoverable an impairment is recognised. This risk is assessed on annual basis by those charged with
gbvernance. ’ ’ )

Where independent valuations for FESFA reporting requirements have been obtained, (hese are considered to represent such
an cvent or circumstance, Due o the cost outweighing the benefit it is not the organisation's ‘policy to obtain an

independent valuation for every property recognised in the balance sheet.

Leaschold property is depreciated aver its estimated. useful economic life. Estimated uscful cconomic life is determined by

indusiry experience driven by information provided by independent experts.

Leascs

Rentals under operating leases aré charged to the Stalement of Financial Activilics on a straight line basis over the lcasc
term. Where the propertics occupied by acquired academies are the subject of PEL contracts, consideration is given to the
detailed items of the relevant contract and to whether or not thé PFL contract transfers the risks and rewards of ownership to
the academy trust. If there is such a transfer of risk and rewards such assels are accounted for under the policies for
leasehold property set out above. Ifsuch risks and rewards are not transferred, the payments under the PFI contract are

treated as opérating lease payments.

Decbtors

“Trade and other deblors are recognised at the settlement amount afler any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued af

the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts duc.

“Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three iménths or
less from the date alacquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account. )

Liabilities and provisious

Liabilitics and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet daie as a result of 2 past event; it
i$ probable that a transfer ol cconomic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the setilement can be
estimated reliably. Liabilitics arc recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or
the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured ai the
best estimate of the amounts required to setule the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the
provision is based on the present value: of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax: discount rate that reflects the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.
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L1y

Financial instruments
The z-xcadcmy trust has chosen (o adopi Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in fuil in respect of financial instruments.

Fipancial assels and liabilities R
Financial assets.and financial liabilitics are recognised when the -academy trust becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilitics arc-classified according to the. substance of the financial instrument’s contractual obligations, rather
than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All financial asscts and liabilities are initially mcasured at transaction price (including transaction costs), except for those
financial assets measured at fair value through the profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair valuc (which is
normally the transaction price excluding transaction. cosis), ‘unless the arrangement constitules a financing transaction. A
financial asset or liability thai is payablc or rcceivable in one year is measured at the undiscounted-amount expected to be
received or paid net of impairment, unless it is a financing transaction. If an arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, the financial asset or financial liabilily is measured at the present value of the fufure payments discounted at a
market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial dsséts”and financial liabilitics are offset only when there iS a current legally enforceable right to set ofl the
recogniscd amounts and the intention to cither scttle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultancously.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial assel is derecognised only when the contractual rights 1o cash flows expire or are settled, or substantially all the
risk and reWdrds 6f owicrship are ransferred to another party; ot if sonte significant risks and rewards of ownership are
retained but control of the asscl has transferred to another party that is able to sell the assct in ifs entirety to an unrelated
third party. A financiul liability (or part thercof) is defecognised when he obligation specitied in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests sct out in Paragraph | Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and thercfore it
meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy leust is polentially exempi from taxation in respect of income or capital gains reccived within
categorics covered by Chapter 3 Pant 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation and Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applicd exclusively to charitable purposcs.

Short-term employment benefits

* Short<tenm employment benefits such as salacies and compensated absences. (holiday pay) are recogaised as an expense in
the year in which the employees render service to the academy trust. The cost of any unused holiday entitlement the.

academy Lrust expeets 10 pay in future periods is recognised in the period the employees' services arc rendered.
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1.2

. Accounting policies (continued)

‘120 Pension bencfits

Retirement benefits to cmptoyccs of the. academy trust are provided by the lc-lchers Pension Sclu,me (" PS") and the
Local Govcrnmcms Pension Scheme ("LGPS") which-are multi-empldyer defined, benefit schemes.

lcachen Pension Schemé

The TIPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are caleulated so as lo spread the cost of pensions over -employees’

‘\\orkmg lives. with the academy trust in such-a way that thc ‘pension cost is a subst:mlmlly level perceniage of current and

fulure pcnsnonablc payroll. The conlrlbuuons arc determinéd by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial

-valuations. using a projecied unit credit inethad. ‘As stated in note 27, the TPS is an unfunded multi:cmployer scheme and

there is insulficient information available to use defined benefit accountinig. The TPS is thetefore tréated ns a deflined
‘contribution. scheme for -accounting purposes and the contributions récognised in, the period to which they refatc,
Differénces bclween conlnbulmns paydblx. in the year and conlnbuuons actually paid arc shown as e:thcr aceruals or
prcpaymcnls

The Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded scheme and the asscts are ‘held &b])ﬂrﬂlcl)' from ‘those-of the acadermy trust-in separate tiustee

administered funds. Pension séheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities arc measured on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit credit method and discounied at a rate cquivalent to the current rate of return on a high ‘Quality -

corporate bond of équivalent term and currency to the tiabilitics. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least tricnnially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts C[\'ll‘gud {0 net income are the current service cosls and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlerments and curtailments. Thcy arc included as part of staff custs as incurred.
Net inieresi on- ke not defined benefit lability/assct is also mcogmscd in. (he ‘Statement of Financial Activities and
‘comprises the inerest- ¢ost on the defined benefit obllgauon and ‘intercst income on thc scheme assets; caleulaled by
‘multiplying the fair valuc.of thé scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount, the. benefit
obligations. The. dxfﬁ.rcncc between the: interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other comprehensive i income.

Actuarial gains and [osses and (e effect of the asset ceiling are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
. & K 10 d 33 C g al gs catcly ) npr !

The LGPS asscls arc'mauagcd by-the scheme frustees at schemie level, and the determination /allocation of assets to each
individual cmpIO)cr in {he scheme is managed by the scheme actuary. The assets are allocated (o cach employer for
accounting purposes based on the valuation:of the asseis at the latest {riennial valuation as adjusted for subscquent
contribuiions received fromi-the employer, #sset returns and bencfit payments made (cither on a cash basis or actuarial
basis).

“The reiirenient bericfit obligation recognised represents the: deficit or- surplus in the defined benefit plans. Any surplus
r&sultmg from this- caleulation is limited to the present value of any cconomic benefits available in the form of refunds from
ihe plans or reductions in fiture contributigns to.the plans.

Fund aceounting

Unrestricted income funds represent.those resources which may’ be used towards mecting any of ihe chariiable objects of
the academy trust at the diseretion ol the trustecs.

Restricted fixed assct funds are resources which arc to be dpplied to spucmc capiil purposes imposed h)v |lu: fuiders. where
the.asset acquired or cieaied is held for a ‘specific purposc.

Resiricicd general funds.comprise all oiher restrictéd funds received with resiriciions imposed by the funder/donor. and
include grants Trom the l)qmrl:ncnl for Feucatioi Group.

Endowment funds are resources 1o be held on trust 19.be retaingd or the benefit of the academy trust as a cz’lpi.l:ll fund.

Page 42.

o S,

PRty

L G s i S . i,

i o A




NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
A company |imited'b‘y guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

. Accounting policies (continucd)

1.22

1.24

Agency arrangements

'The academy trust acts as an agent in.the administering of 16-19 Bursary Funds froni the ESFA. Related payments réceived
from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities to the
extent that the trust docs not havé a beneficial interest in the individual transactions. Where funds have not been fully
applied in the year then an améuit ‘will be included as amounts duc to the ESFA. The funds reccived and paid and any
balances held with the ESFA are disclosed in note 32.

Employce termination benefits

‘The best estimate of the ex’pcnditure required to seitle an obligation for termibation benelits is recagnised immediately as
an cxpense when the academy trust is demonstrably committed ta terminate the employment af an employee or o provide
termination benelfits,

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgments are continually cvaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, mcludmg
expectations of future cvenis thal arc belicved io be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting cstimates nnd assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumpfions concerning thé future. The resulling accounting estimaies and
agsumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related acival results. The estimates and assumptions. that have a
mgmﬁcml risk of causing a mah.nal adjusiment to the c.lrrynw amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year arc discussed below.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit obligation depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for peasions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension obligation. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the
latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions obligation
at 31 August 2023, Any difTerences between ihe figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial
valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension obligation.

Usecful economic lives of tangible assets

The annual depreciation charge’for the tangible assets is sensitive 10 changes in the estimated useful economic lives and
tesidual values of the assets. The uscful economic lives and residual values. are re-assessed annually. They are amended
when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological advancement, fiture investmenis, ccononiic utilisation
and the physical condition of the assets. See note 14 for the cairying amount of the property plant and équipment and note
1.11 for the depreciation accouniing policy.

Property valuations

When new schools join the academy trusi, the new schoo! Jund and. buildings arc included at a valuation at the date of’

iransfer. This valuation is then treated as deemed cost.

Manigement have taken advice from proflessional valuers in determining the amounts ai which those buildings arc included
inthe financial statements.
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. tAccounting policies (continucd)
- PR
Cr’i(ical,aréas of judgement
I’ropcrhcs subjcct to PEI arrangements

Managcmcnt are required to, make a Judgcmm( as to the appropnatc accounung treaiment and prcscnlatlon of propérties
subjcct to' PFL “They do lhu on a case by case basis with reference 1o specific commc!s m place.- The considerations

include;

. Right to access/restrictions of use-

. Risks of ownership

. Réwards o'f owriérship

.. :Subsl.mcc of transactioit

"_ Any oblu,‘mon io make c1plial contributions.

Local Government Pension Scheme

Determining the existence.of a minimum l'undmg requ1rcmenl for. the Local Government Pension Scheme 10 be mclu(l:,d in,
the asset ceiling 'in measuring and recognising a surplus in the scheme. This judgement is based on an assessment of the
nature of the scheme as a Slaiulory schemc and |ls mhcrcnl nmpllcd conlmu'mcc as well as the ‘operation of the primary and
sccondnry conlnbutlons ’
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.l'_ncomc'from.&onationS"and capimi grimts

Unrestricted .. Restricted fixed Total Total
-funds  Restricted funds asset funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
,£000 , £000 £000 £000 . £000
Donaiions 582 (431) 1474 1,625 188
Devolved Formula Capital - . 316 36 299
» Other capital grants - 931 1,827 2,758 1,766
582 500 3617 4,699 2,253

Total 2022 ' 138 1.627 438 2253

included within donuions are donated fixed asseis of £1.452k transferred into the Trust on conversion of Hetton Academy. Further
details on the transfers in dre showin in nofe 25. '

Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds - funds
2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000
Charify trading income
“School lentings 351 33t 302
Unifonn It L1 13
Insurance claims - - 19
Other income 603 603 318
945 945 652
Total 2022 652 652
Investment income
Unrestricted Totat Total *
funds funds funds
2023 2023: 2022
£000 £000 £000
 Bank Interest ag2 482 !

Total 2022 ‘ . / !
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Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Usrestricted ) Total Total
funds Restricted funds " funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
) _£000 £000 £000 £000
Trust's educational operations
DIE/ESFA grants -
" General Annual Grant (GAG) - 86,898 86,898 80,077
Other DIE/ESFA grants
_Pupil Premium - 7,116 7,116 <6515
Main School Additional Grani - 1,391 1,391 -
School Supplementary Grant - 2,489 2,489 1,073
Other DFE/ESFA prants - 4,654 4,654 3.383
. - - 102,548 91,048
Other Government grants
Local Authority grants .- 812 812 457
SEN from LA - 1594 1,594 1373
Other Government grants - 112 i12 i1o
Nursery grants and EYSFI - L1g 1,118 1,070
- 3.636 3,636 3.010
Other income from the Academy Trust's educational . )
operations : 2,342 - 2,342 2,222
238 106,184 108,526 96,280
2,342 106,184 108,526 96,280
Total 2022 2222 94,058 96,250
ii;pcndimrp
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £L000
Trust’s educational operations:
Dircct costs 65,570 . 116,210 75,780 71,445
Support costs 15,788 11,406 13,394 40,588 36.470
$1,358 11,406 23,604 116,368 107,913
Total 2022 75,108 9,499 23,306 107,913
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7.

'A_naly;éfs of expenditure by activities

. Activities

undertaken Total Total
directly Support costs funds funds
‘2023 12023 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
“Trust’s educational dperations 75,780 40,588 116,368 107,913
JTotal 2022 71,443 36,470 107,913
‘Included in direct costs above are PFI costs of £2,221k (2022 £1,432K), of which £1,193k (2022: £561k) relates to Kirk Balk
Academy, £917k (2022: £871k) rclates to Walbottle Academy and £111k relates to Hetton Academy.
' L 0 : . s :
Anilysis of support costs.
Total Total
funds funds
2023 2022
£000 £000
Stafl costs 15,788 12,818
! Dgpfcciulion, amonrtisation and impairment .5,643 5,292
'l‘cchm-)logy costs 1,6 1'9 i1 é9
Recruitment and support 31 . 100
' l\fluinicqancc of premises.and equipment 3,439 3.973
Admiistration 2,298 1,973
. Cleaning 646 604
Energy costs 3,488 2179
Rent, Rates and other occupancy costs 1,007 " 86t
Insurance ’ 384 383
“Seeurity and transport 812- 568
c‘Ca_llcrihg supplies 3,617 4,057
-Other support costs 962 884"
Goyernance costs”. 638 629
Defined benefit pension. costs 36 “946
"I:cg,al cosls 80 74
40,588 *36.470

Expenditure on chariiable activities was £116, 368k (2022 - £107,913k) of which £2 ,830k (2022 - £2, ,272k) was unrt.slnc(sd £5,643k (2022 -

£3292k) was S restricted ﬁcd asset fund and £107,895k (2022- £100,349k) was restricted income funds.
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Net incomc/(cxpcndiiurc) .

Net income/(expenditure) for the year fm_:ludés‘. )

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amorntisation of intangible assets’
Fees paid to RSM UK Audit LLP aid its assoiates for:,
- audit services - statutary audit
- other services - audit
*- other services - ﬁim audit_
‘ Opcralillé Ieasg charge-
‘Net interest on defined benefit pension liability

Feés payable for internal audit services during.the year werc £6 1k (2022 - £42K).
- ‘ LTI R ) s - LR - - ! - - b -

' Staff
. a. Staff costs

*Staff costs during the year were as follows:

' \\'agcq and salaries .

. Social security costs

: Pension cosls
Total staff costs.,
Agéncy §talT costs
, H -0

* Stafl restructuring costs

. Slﬁﬂ’rcéimclur‘ing costs cémprisc,)-

Redundancy payments

*Severance payments

2023 2022+
£000 £000
5,627 5,276
15 47
-‘33 84
12 17
29 4
2,417 1,967
36 946
2023 2022
£000 £000
57,194 '49,683
5,978 5,269
12,363 16424°
75,535 71.376
*5,617 3.619*
206 13
81,358 75,108
2023 2022
£000 £000
124 56
82 57
206 13
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.

,§taﬂf (continucd)

b. Exit payments

The Acadcmy Trust paid 5 severance payul\cn{s ani_l 25 redundancy paymenis in ihe year, disclosed in the following bands:

2023
‘No.
£0 - £25,000 29
£25,001 - £50,000 1
.c. Special 'stgnff.éc\"érnncé p:iy;l\(::lils
‘Staff severance payments o ) .
Included in staff costs afe non-Statulory/non-contractual séverance payments totalling £nil (2022 - £3,105)..
d. Staff numbers
The average number of persons émployed by the Academy Trust d_urin'g the year was as follows:
2023 2022
No. No.
-Teachers 715 7il
Administration and support 1,127 1,010
Management 170 138
2,012 1,859
“The avc'raﬁc hc:}dcogu{t cxprcs'scd as full-time cquivalents was:
2023 2022
No. No.
Teachers 1642 667
+ Administration and support 690 645_—
Management 164 135
V1,496 4,448
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9.

'Slhf('(con(inucd) ¢

<. Higher paid staff .

’l'he number of cmployccs whose cmploycc bcmms (cxcludm;, cmploycr pt.nsmn Ct)sls and cmploycr nitional m‘:ur:lncc conlnbunons)'

cxceedcd £60,000 was:

2023
No..
I the band £60,001 - £70,000 152
- In the band £70,001 - £80,000 36
In-the band £80 001 = £90 000 - .9
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 ¢
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 4
“in the band £110,001 < £120,000 ‘2
“In the band £120,001 - £130,000 -3
“In the band £130,001 - £140,000 «2
+ In the bind £140,001 - £150,000 i
In the band £150,001 - £160,000 1
In the band £200,001 - £210,000 :’
In the'band £230,001 - £240,000 1

f. Kéy managenicent personnel

" N gy - v . . . 1
The kcy management personnel of U\c acndcmy trust comprise the ,'l'ruslccs and thc senior management 1€am as listed on page 1.

2022
No-
39
27

““The total amount of employee bcnel’ts (lmludmg employer pension comnhullom and employér naiional insurance coniributions) received by

key management personnel for their services to lhca»adcmy trust was £1 466 266 (2022 - £750,659).

The § lncrcnic in cost is duc to the addition of the three Senior Exceutive Pnnc:pals and the Director of Finance and Prm.urcmcnl atzlmg7 as the

. Clucf Financial Officer whilst the Chicf Operating and Finance Of ficeris seconded to another academy trust,
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Central services
The academy trust has pfov’idcc} the. f(\ll.owing céntral services to its academics dgring the year;
’ School improvement
Financial mnr;ugc‘mc:‘nv
_ Audit service -
HR and legal advice
fistates managemeni
- Curriculuim-design -
Staff deployment and recruitment ¢
Data support
Bustness services
Health and safety
» Compliance and communications .
' Marketing and media
I'T suppon.
Web design
e - Procurement
B Safcguard_ing

® ® & @ & er 8 & & & .0:0" 0

The academy trust charges for thesc services on the following basis:

A flat 6% of income reecived c\cludmg targeied grants of sccondnry income and a flat £20k for primary income (2022 S% of ifcome received
excluding targeted grants forall acadc cmics).

'lfhc actual'amounts charged duging the year werc as follows;

2023 - 2022
~£000 +£000 -
The Biyth Academy 314, 254
Dyke Housé Sports & '.i'cg;hpology College .5! 2 399
Freebrough Academy 310 i 257
“The Grangelicld Academy L 385, 318
Kearsley. ;\cadcm)t 268" 215
l-ii'rls Baik )\cadcmy 451 360
,M'unor Academy 41t 335
North Shore Academy 269 205
Red House Acadenty 158 130
"I'horp Academy 440 355
Walboitle Academy 595 - 483
‘Hetion Academy 243, -
Ahbey Park Prfmary ‘Academny 20 49
Badger Hill Academy 20 39
-The Fems Primary-Academy 20 96
Frederick, Nattras$ Primary Academy 20 56
Hilton Primary Academy V 20 99
Merlin Top Primary Academy 20 76
-Mount Pellon Infants & Junior Primary Academy 20 87
* Norion Primary g\c_:\dc‘m'y ‘20 7
The Ouk Tree Academy 20" 77
- Whitceliffe Academy 20 28
s :
Total * . 4,556 3.983
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1L

12

13.

“Trustees' rémunération and expenses

One or more frustees has been paid remunecration or has received other benefits from employment with the. academy trust. The principal and
other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect. of services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and siafl members under

» their contracts of employment.

The valug of trustees’ remuncration and olhcrbcncﬁ!s was as flollows:

Rob "Farn (Chicf Exccutive and 'lrustcc) Remuncration £232 576 (2022: £206,867) Employer’s pension contributions pald £30 837 (2022'

+£34,310). Included in the £232,576 is pay award backpay ¢ of £7,576,

During the period ended 31 Augusi 2023, travel and subalsn.nce c\p;mcs totalling £74¢ were reimbursed or mnd dnrcdly to 1 trustee (2021;

£751 to 4 trustecs),

Othér fefated party transdctions involving the frustees arc-set out in note 30.

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

“Invaccordance with normal commercial practicé, the academy trust has purchascd insurance to protect trustees and ofTicers from claims arising
rom ncgligent acts, errors or omissions oceurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one-claim

and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £3,001 (2022 - £2.587), The cost of this insurance is included in the tofal insurance cost.

Intangible assets

-Cost
Atl Scplcmbcr 2022

A3 August 2023

Amortisation

At | September 2022
Charge for the year

ALU31 Airgust 2023

“Net book value

At31 Aligust 2023

At 31 Augnst 2022

Computer
software
£000

41

141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Duc within one year
Trade deblors
Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

VAT recoverable

5
‘14, “Tangible fixed assets
Leaschold  Furniture and Computer
property " “fixtures equipment  Motor vehicles Total
£000 .£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At L September 2022 170,418 2,304 4,415 . 40 ,[77_,177'
Additions 3,006 7 81 s 3,094
. Acquired on conversion 1,427 z - - 1,427
Disposals - - (639) -. (639) -
At 3 I August 2023 174,851 231 3,857 40 181,059
Deprccliati'on
‘At | September 2022 28,008 1,970 2,605. 40 . 32,623
- Charje for the- year 4,785 143 699 - '5,627
- On disposals - 4 (639) - (639)
AL31 August 2023 32,793 2,113 2,665 40 37,611
Net hook value
AL31 August 2023 142,058 198 1,192 - 143,448
At31 August 2022 142,410 334 1810 - 144,554
On the. Isl September 2022 Hetton Schoal converted to Hetton Academy and joined. the trust. The fair value of the assets transferred were
£1,427k (nofe 25)
15.  Debtors -

2023 2022
£000 £000
195 261
923 61
2,578 1,889
L7 r2r
3,983 3,423
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- 16.

NhA

Creditors: Amounts falling dué within one year

Trade t_:l;t.:gil_(;rs .
1 Other taxation and social sccurity
+ Other ceéditors o
-Accmals and deferred income

2023 2022
£000 £000°

322, 844
11,379+ 1,269
*1,557 (1,355
6,369 '5.567
9,627 9,035

Included in pti\cr c_riitiilors"(}he \yili\i_n one: year {sa loanfofﬂ}k (2022 - £l7kj from Salix which is‘pr:)\'iﬁcci on the following terms; repayment
“of £9k every 6 months, no interesi is payable on the loan. . A further £nil (2022 - £9k) is dut after more than one year and is defailed in note 17

. Deferred income
oL T,

" Deferred income at 1 September -
Amounis released from previous periods

Deferred income

-

Creditors: Amounts falling duc after moré than one year

; Othet loans”

2023 2022
.£000 £000
: 47.

- 1

2023 2022
£000 £000
. 9
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18.

1 Statement of funds

l_)'ﬁrgslri'cted funds

- Unrestricted funds .

Endowment funds

Endowment fund

Réstricted general

funds

General Anmual Grant

+(GAG)
[’upilpr‘c-mium

Qther DAYESFA grants
Local Authanity g;axlls
SEN from Local Authority
Other govermmient. grants
Nln'xq Eranls ‘and EYSFF

Main school additional -

"~ grant

‘School supplementary

grant

Pension resérve

Restricted fixed asset

funds

l)ﬂ’JF,Sl?l\ grants

Other DIE capital gramt

*Sponsgrship capital
comribution

- Assets inherited on
conversion

Assets inheriied an
tronsfer

Capital expenditure from
-

GAG

’.I"o(al Restricted.
funds

Totnl funds

Balance at i , ) Gains/. ..Balance at31
-Septeaiber 2022 Income Expenditurée Trausfers infout (Losses) ' ‘August 2023
£000 £000 . £000 £000 £000 £000
9,239 4351 (2,830) - - 10,760
1,438 - - . .- 1,438
2,456 87,828 - (87,629) (651) - 2,004
- 2,116 (1.116) : - .
- 4,654 “(3,654) - - -
- 812 312) - K -
< 1,594 +{1,594) - - -
- u3 L(113) - - -
: Lus (1,118) - N .
- 1,391 (1,391) - - .
< 2,489 (2,489) - - -
(3:300) (3n ©79) E 471 64
(844) 106,684 -(107,895) . (651) 4,774 2,068
1,953 36 D) - - 2,198
(725) 1,874 +{1,585) . - - {436)
7% - . (135) - - 540
107,660 1427 + (2.597) - - “106,490
31449 - {70 P M 30,739 ;
$32% - (95) a5t - 5381
146287 3617 (5.643) 651 - 144,912
145,443 110,301 (113,538) - 4,774 146,980
156,120 - 114,652 (116,368) - 4774 159,178
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o

(i)

(iif)

. (l;\'s
)

* (i)

* Statément of funds (continued)
“The specific purposés t:oy which ihe funds are to be applicd are as follows:

'GAG balance carry forward is 16 be tsed for recurrent expenditure in the forthicoming period. Undet the frust's Funding /{grccmcnl‘

with the Sccrctary of Staté the trust was not subject 16 a limit of GAG which could be carried forward as at 31 August.2023.

Restrictéd Fixed Assel Funds relate to income received from the DEE, other governrent grants, fransfers from GAG income and income

{from sponsors.ol individual companies prior o’ ‘the merger of the trust. The funds balance includes donafed capital, being acddemy

buxldmga conlcnls and Icr asscts. The depreciation relating 1o the asscts procuired is chargcd ag.unst these funds over ihe life-of the -
asscls

Unrestricted Funds relate to Rinds brought. for\mrd upon individual* >chock integrating wuh the trust and’ sclf g«.ncralcd mcomc by the
trust's academies”

Restricted Pcnsiof\ Fund is in surplus to the valug of £64k (iOéi - E3,0‘33k acﬁc‘il) at the year end.

Atotal of £65H¢ (2022 £2,067k) has been lransfcrrcd from rc;mctcd gcncrnl l'und.s. 10 restricted fixed assel funds to take accounl
oflhc capital items that have béen purchased using GAG I'undx

Endowment Funds were inheriied on conversion: [The. balance rémains unchanged from previous years at £1,438k.




NORTHERN:EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by,guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statcmt}nt ol:funds (continixcd)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted funds

Eudowment funds

Endowment fund

Restricted gencral
funds

* General Annual Grant
(GAG) -
Pupil premium

« Other DIE/ESFA granis
Local Al}ihoﬁly grants

SEN (rom Local
Authority

Other govémment granis

Nursery grants and
EYSFF

Pension reserve

Réstricted fixed asset
funds

DIE/ESFA grants

Other DAE capital grant

Sponsorship Eapital
contribuiion

Assets inherited on
«conversion

-Asscts inherited on
ransfer

*Capital expenditure
from GAG

Tofal Restricted funds

ffqlnl funds

Balance at Gains/ Balance at.
A September 2021 Inconie Expenditure  Transfers infout (Losses) 31 August 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
8,448 3,063 (2,272 < - 9,239
1,438 - - - 1,438
2,245 81,704 (79.426) (2.067) : 2.456

: 6515 (6.515) . - :

- 4,456 (4.456) - - -

- 457 (457) - - -

- 1373 (1,373 - - .

- 10 (1) - - :

- 1,070 (1.070) - . .
(55,036) - (6,942) . 58,678 (3.300)
(52,790 95.685 (100,349) (2.067) 58,678 (844)

1,699 299 (43) - : 1,953

745 139 .(1.609) - - (725)

902 (177 . - 725
109,764 - (2.104) - 107.660

32,159 - (710) . - 31,449
3.805° - (647) 2,067 - 5,225
149,074 438 (5.292) 2.067 - 146,287
96,283 96,123 (105,641 - 58.678 145,443
99,186 (107,913) - 58,678 - 156,120

- 106,169

Page 57




NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
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18.

Statement of funds (continucd)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund. balantes at 31 August 2023 werc allocated as follows:

2022 T

£000

11.380

11,695
146,287

1,438
- (3.300

2023

£000

The Fems Primary Academy 15
Hilton Academy ‘ 15
" Merlin ‘Tep Primary Academy 15
Mount Pellon Infants & Jum'oy Academy 15
Kearsley Academy 15
*North $hore Academy 5
Dyke House Sports & Technology College -15
Abbey Park Primary Academy A5
The Grangefield. Academy: 15
“The Biyth Academy lé
Froderick Nattrass Primary é\c&lﬁcn1}' 15
‘The Oak "I'réc Academy 15
Norton é’rimary Academy A5
Kirk Balk Academy 15
“Manor Academy 15
Red House Academy- 15
Thorp Academy ‘15
Badger Hifl Primary Academy 15
Whiteelitfe Prifary Aéademy 15
- Freebrough Academy ’ 15
‘Walbottle Academy 15
Heuton Academy 15
The Centre. 12,434
“Tatal before fixed asset funds and pension réserve’ 12,764
Restricted fixed asset fund 144,912
Endowment fund 1,438
Pension reserve 6
Total 159,178

156,120

Trustees take serivusly their responsibility 1o ensure the frust continues as a going concern over the medium term. Given the current overall
cconomic climate, pressure on government spending, changes in establishing national oversight of academics and MAT's and funding, of Local

Goverament Pension Schemes (LGPS), medium term {financial planning is a ligh priority for trustecs.

The trusst Gontinues 1o successfully évidence an effective and progressive approach to Financial Plarining and Managemient with a scamless Wik
to both school improvement and continuous student wellare. Overall the trust's free reserves have risen incrementally (2012/13; £2m to £12 Tin.
in2022/23) providing financial stability Having ihis solid foundation, thé trust has Heen able to invest substandially in schovl improventent and

I'T throughout the year.

As per the reserves policy.ouilined in the Trustees' Report, trustees have considered individual academy reserves within the academy trust with
the plan going forward to manage funds (at £15k per academy) at a trust level. These funds will better support a new, consistént and swudent

focussed apprauch to school improvement.across all academics.
J P
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“NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guaiantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

18.

Statement of funds (continucd)

Total éost,anill’y'sis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

"I'chchipg and

educational . Other costs . e
support staff Other support Educational -excluding Total 7?7_/!71
costs © staff costs ‘supplies depreciation 2023 2022
-£000 £600 £000 £000 £000 £000
“The Ferns l;rimar)a . .
Academy 1,579 415 71 436 2,501 ‘2,495
Hillon Academy 1,595 438 56 488 2,577 2,640
Merlin Top Primary a .
Academy 1,435 186 100 568° 2,289 2,247
Mount Pellon Infants ) .
& Junior Academy 1.481 328 54 3 2,234 2,271
Kearsley Academy 2,9_86 178 314 977 5,055 4,777
North Shore Academy 3,358 797 2n 942 5,374 5,398
Dyke House Sports &
Technology College - 6,082 1,097 415 1,493 *+ 9,087 92,376
Abbey Park Primary . . }
Academy 1,070 283 27 228 ‘1,608 1.520
The Grangeficld )
Academy 4,142 '702 335 1,020 6,199 6,144
“The: Blyth Academy 3,649 875 244 1291 6,059 6149
Frederick Nattrass o
Primary Academy 1,088 294 n 247 1,662 1,717
The Oak Tree .. .
Academy 1,379 292 44 348 ;2,06‘3 2,195
Norton Primary ) ) o )
Academy 1,633 228 66 351 2,278 2,238
Kirk Balk Acadeiny 4,965 1,091 427 1,996 2.1,479 7.996
Manor Academy 4570 830 353 1,514 7,287 7.245
Red [louse Academy 2218 ' 633 163 901 3,915 3,782
“Thorp Academy 6,124 '909 390 1,403 8.826 8.228
Badger Fill Primary
Academy 74 119 25 205 1,123 1,249
Whitecl iffe Peimary
Academy 567 144 27 1163 901 870
Freebrough Academy 3,656 978. 302 371 .6,307 5,978
Walbottle Academy 6,904 8§99 539 2,872 1,214 10.943
Hetton Academy 3,465 501 229 1,284 5,479 .
The Centre 850 2,951 221 4,186 8,208 7.163
}\cndc.“y T'rust 65,570 . . ‘5,788 4,7]2 24,655 i 10.725 - 102,62 I
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19. Anilysis of nét assets between funds

-Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Unrestricted ) Restrictéd fixed Endowment Total

" funds  Restricted funds asset funds funds funds

2023 12023 2023 2023 2023

£000 - £000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed asscts 2 : *143 448 : 143,448

Intangible fixed assets. - - 60 o 60

-Curren assets 10,790 11,601 1,404 1438 25,233

+ Creditors duce within one year (30) -(9.597)- - " (9,627)

“Provisions for liabilities and charges - 64 - . 64
Total - - - : — - '

]0,760 2,068 144912 1,438 15.9,l7§

Analysis of net assets hetween funds - prior year
tysis , d

Unrestricted ' Restricled ﬁxéd Enc}owméni Total
fuiids  Restricted funds «dissel funds funds furids

2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
'Euﬁgiblc fixed assets - . 144554 - I':_M, 554
Intangibie fixcd assets : - 7s : 75
Cllrrcnt asscls’ 9,239 11,500 1.658 1438 ?3,835

: Cl:cdftors: due within one year: - ¢ (9.035) - : (9.035)
- Créditors dué in more than ene year - ) - - it
ProviSions for liubilitics and charges’ - (3,300) - - (3.300)
Total 9,239 (344) 146,267 1,438 156,120
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20.  Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from oper‘ating activitics
2023 2022
£000 £000
Net expenditure for the year (as per Siatement of financial activities) (1,716) (8.727)
Adjustments for:
.Amortisation 15 17
Depreciation '5,627 5276
Interest receivable: (482) j
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 943 3,996
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cos 36 946
(Increasc)/decrease in debtors (560) 1,258
Increase/(decrease) in creditors '892 (359)
Capital grants from DIE and other capital income (4,5:48) (2.065}
Net gain on.transfer from. Local Authority on conversion (1,452) -
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities ( l_,SJS) 2,141
21.. Cnsh ﬂo'\\'_'s :l"rom financing activitics
2023 2022
£000 £000
Cash outflow 1o Salix loan 9 (17)
Net cash used in financing activities 9 (17)
22, Cash flows from ilni'csting activities
2023 2022
£000 £009
Invesiment income 482 !
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (3,094) (3.472)
Cnpi(al grants from DA Group 4,548 2.065
Cash teansfesred on conversion from Local Authority an conversion, 456 -
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 2,392 “(1,406)
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23. An'alysis of cash'and cash 'cquivnlcnts

- Cash'in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

24.  Anilysis of changes in net dc_i)t

“Cash at bank and in hand’
.Debt due after 1 year

25. Conversion to an academy trust

AL L September

2023 2022
£000 £000
21,250 20,412
21,250 20412

At31 August

) 2022 Cash flows 2023
£000 £000 £000
20,412 ‘838 21,250
(&) 9 -
20,403 847 21,250

On Ist Scprember 2022 liciton School converted to academy trust status under the Academics Act 2010 and all the operaiions and asscts and
‘liabilities were transferred to Northern Education Trust from Sunderland City Council for £nil consideration,

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities transferred were valued at their fair
value and recognised in the Balance sheet under the appropriate hending with: a ¢orrésponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the

Statement of financial activities.

“The following table sets oul the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilitics transferred aind an analysis of their recognition in the

" Staicment of financial activitics.

Unrestricted Restricted fixed Total
funds  Restricted funds asset funds funds
) £000 £000 £000 £000
“Tangible fixed asscts
Leasehold land and buildings H : 1,427 1,427
- Current asscts
Cash - representing budget surplus o LA fuinds 409 - - 409
Cash - representing unspent capital school funds - - 47 47
‘Non-current liabilities .
Penston - pension liabilities - 430 - i43 l'i)
Net assets/(liabilitics) 409 (31 1474 11,452

The {otal icome and endowments: and net incomelexpenditure coimprisc. otal incomé of £6 452k and

contributed by Hetton Academy betwien the date of transfer and 31 Augusi 2023,

net incomelexpenditure of 718k
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FOR THE. YEAR ENDED 3t AUGUST 2023‘

Contingent liabilitics

During the period of the F undmg Agrcement, in the event of ihe sale or d»sposal by other means. of any asscl for which a Governnient mpxnl

- grant was rcccwcd the trust is required either Lo re-invest the procceds or to repay to the ESFA the samé proportion oﬁhc procceds of the salc or

disposal as cquates. with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of Staté. .

-

. et

'Upon termination of 1hc F undmg Agrcement, Whether as a rcsull of the Sccrclaw of Snlc or the trust scrvm nollcc (hc trust shall rcpay to lhc
]

-

Sccrctnry of State sums determined by rcﬂ.n.ncc to:
. : »
(a) - the. \'aluc at that time of the trust’s msscls héld for the pur{msc of the trust; and

(O the extent 16 which e‘(pcndll\lrc mcurrcd in providing lhosc assets was met by aymcnls by the Sccrclnry of State under thé rundmg
' Agrcuncnl

‘Page _63




NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

. v

(A.company finiited by, guarantee)

o s - — '

“NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘27,

-Pension commitments

The acaJcmy trust’'s cmployees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic

.and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme. (1.GPS) for non-teaching staff. Boih are multi-cmployer defined bencfit schemes,

The geographical location of the Trust's 22 academics mean that the Trust is part of six.different local government pension schemes. These are

- Greater Manchester Pension Scheme
‘= Northumberland Pension Scheme

.- Teesside Pension Scheme

- West Yorkshirc Pénsion Schenie

- South Yorkshire Pension Scheme

- Tyne & Wear Pension Scheme

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS relaied to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022,
Coniributions amounting to £1,396k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £1211k) and are in_ciudcd within crcdilo_rs,
Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (' TPS) is a statutory; contributory, defined benefit schemé, governed by the Teachers' Pensions 2014, Membership
is automatic for teachers in academics, All teachers have Lhe option to opt-out of the ‘TPS following enrollment. The TPS is an unfunded scheme
and members contribute on a *pay as you g0’ basis ~ thesé contributions along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. The
academy trust has-accounted: for its coniributions to the scheme as i€ it were a dcf ned contribution scheme. The academy trust has sct out below
the information a\"ulabl(. on the scheme.

Yaluation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Governmeal Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordancé with the Public Service
Pensions (Valuations and Emplayer Cost Cap) Directions 2023 published by HiM Treasury every 4 years. ‘The i of the review is to specity the
level of future contributions, Actarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benelits and
many other faciors, The latest actuarial valuation of the 'TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020 in accordance with The Public Service
Pensions (Valu'mons and Employer Cost Cap) Dircetions 2023 and the Employer Contribution Rate was assessed using agreed assumptions in
line with the Directiods und was accepted at the original assessed. rate as there was no cost control mechanism breach. ‘The valualion report was
published by the Department for Education on 26 Qcteber 2023, The key clements of the valuation and subsequent consulnuon are,

e Total scheme liabilitics for service ((h» capiial sum needed ai 31 March 2020 (o meet the stream of future cash flows in respect of benefits
curncd) of £262 billion

+®  Valuc of notional asscis {estimated {uwre contributions together with the procecds from the notional investments hetd at the valuation date)

of £222 billion

‘e "Notional past scrvice deficit of £39.8 billion (2016 £22 billion)

e Discount saie is 1.7% in excess of CPI (2016 2.4% in excess of CPI) (ihis change has had ihe greatest financial significancc).

As 2 result ol the valuntion, new employer contribution rates have been sct at 28.6% of pensionable pay from | April 2024 until 31 March 2027
(compared (o 23.68% undcer the previous valuation including a 0.08% administration levy).

“The erployer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the ycar amounted to-£8,391k (2022~ £7,530k)
A copy of the valuation report and supporiing documentation is on the ‘T enchers' Pensions websiie
Under the definitions set oul in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme, The academy (rust has accounted for its

contributions to the scheme as i it were o defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has sct out above the information available on the
scheme
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27.

Pension commitments (continucd)
Local Government Pension Scheme

Thé LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension schéme, with the assets held in scparate trustee-administered funds. The total coniribution made
for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £4,114k (2022 - £3,840k)), of which employer's contributions totalled £3,029k (2022 - £2,898Kk)) and”
cemployees’ contributions totalled £1,085k (2022 - £942k)), The agreed contribution rates for future years arc 14.9-20.7 per cent for cmployers
and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employces. i

-As described in note 25 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were the employecs transfeired as part of the

conversion from the mainiained school and new employees who were eligible io, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect.
of employecs who transferred on conversion represents their cumalative service at both the predecessor school and the Academy Trust at the:

‘balance sheet date.

During the year Hetton School transfrred in {o the academy trust. The obligation in respect of employces who transferred with Hetton Schoof to
the academy trust representing their cumulative service to the predecessor employer was recognised in the SoFA as part of the gain/(loss) on

transfér as set out in note 25.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Sccretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of acadery ¢losure, ouistanding
Local Government Pension Schemé liabilitics would be met by the Depantment for Education, The guarnice came inte force-on I8 July 2013
and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed if's commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on
GOV.UK..

‘Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of i for pensions in - Di rate for sch
Rate of increase on salaries pa; thinflati linbilities

2023 201 2023 2022 2023 2022

% % % L% Y %
. Fems 315 330 295 305 20 425
Hilton 410 420 260 270 5.00 410
Mettin Top 385 195 2.60 270 5.10 410
» Mount Pellon . 3.85 395 260 270 5.10 410
Keasiley 380 390 300 305 520 425
* North Shore 4.00 108 300 *308 520 420
Dykeé House 4.00 403 3.00 1508 520 4.20
Abbey Paik 385 395 2.60 270 5.10 410
Grangefield 400 405 300 .305 520 420
Biyth 385 430 260 280 s.d0 -a.10
Feedetick Natsass 400 405 3.00 3.05 520 420
‘Oak Tree 2.00 - 405 3.00 3.03 3.20 420
Norton 400 405 3.00 305 520 420
Kirk Balk 13,60 420 3.00 320 520 425
Manor 4,00 405 5.00 305 '520 420
Red House a0 420 260 270 5.0 410
Thorp 4.10 420 2,60 270 v5.00 410
Badgec Hil 400 405 3.00 305 520 420
Whitecliffe 400 405 3.00 3.05 520 20
Freebrough 100 2405 300 308 520 420,
«Walboile. 410 420 260 230 5.00 410
Heiton L4.10 260 5.00

NET 4.10 420 2.60 70 5.00 4.10
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27

Pension commitments (conlinued)

“The current montalily assumptions include sufficient allowance for Riture improvements it mortality rates. The assuméd life. cxpectations on

retirement age 65 are:

2023

.2022

Aales

Females

Males

Females

Mortality
Ferus.
Hilton
“Medin Top
Mouat Pellon
Keanslay
North Shore
Dyks House
Abbey Park
Grangefield
Biyth
Frederick Natmrass
Ok Tree
Norton
‘Kirk Balk
Rad House
“Thowp
Badger Hill
Whitecliffe
Fresbrough
Walbottle
Hetton

NET

Share of scheine assets

Retring  Retiring in

. (od_a_v

193
210
210
210
193
305
205
210
205
210
‘20,5
203
205
206
205

o .

210
205
25
205
210
210
210

20 years

19.1
22
22
232
203
213
213
22
213
22
213
213
213
214
a3
222
22
23
213
213
22
22
22

Retlring  Retiriog in

today

233
2.4
Ul
2.1
233
235
235
244
235
241
25
235
P
236
235
M1
2.1
235
233
1Y}
241
241
41

. LA
The Acadeiny Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equitics

Cci‘pomtc bonds

Property

Cash and-other liquid assets
Other

Other bonds

Total market value of asscts

The ucivuu‘l relurn on scheme assets was £1,721k (2022 - £1.315k).

20 years

24
255
2.1
231
205
%9
250
251
250
5.5
250
250
250
250
250
255
255
250
250,
.250
253
283
2.5

Retising  Retiring in

today

203
218
218
28
203
12
217
218
217
2i8
A7
27
247
26
27
218
218
217
217
217
2138

218

20 years

216
35
23
25
216
29
29
23
29
235
29
29
29
241
09
235
s
09
29
229
235

25

Retiring .  Reiiring in
today " 20years

232 258
250 261
26 253
216 253
2 251
35 253"
235 253
26 AR
25 %53
250 .0
255 253
253 25.3
35 253
254 213
2.5 253
250 2.7
. 250 ‘263
235 253
235 53
235 253
250 263
.250 63
At 31 ,-\ugus( At 31 August
2023 2022
£000 £000
54,957 50,404
2,668 2,460 -
12,559 10.429
2,739 -5.901
5352 4,056
6,437 5,895
79,145

84,712
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Pension commitments (continued)

"The amounts recogniscd in the Statement of financial activities are as follows;
A : ) ph

2023 2022
£000 £000
Current service cost 3,972) (8,745)
Past service cost - (149)
Net intcresi cost » - (36) {946)
Transfer of liabilitics in (431) .’
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activitics (4,439) (9.840)
Changes in the present value of the defined henefit abligations were as follows:
2023 2022.
£000 £000
;\_! 1 Scplcmbér 82,445 130,_365
Current service cost 3,972 8,745
Transferred in on conversion of academy 1,680 -
‘inlcn_:sl cost 3,450 2,245
Employec contributions 1,085 942
Actuarial gains (15,998) (58.662)
Benefits paid -(1,517) (1,239)
Past service costs - 149
At31 August RENTT AN 82,445
Changes in the fair valug of ihe Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as ('olllows“
2023 2022
£000 £000
Atl September 79,143 75.229
Transferred in on conversion ol academy irusts 1,249 -
Expecied return on asseis 3,414 1,299
Actuarial (losses)/gains (1,693) 16
Employer contributions 3,029 2,898
Employce contributions 1,085 942
+ Benefits paid (1,517) . (1,239
At 31 August 84,712 79,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2023
£000 .
Present value of defined beriefit obliéq(iéns (75,117
Fair value.of plan assels 84 712
Net assets 9,595
Restriction 10 level of asset ceiling (9.531)
64

“Nef asset recognised in the balance sheet

“The valug of the acadcmy trust's share of nct. assels has been rcslm.tcd due to the cffect of the assct ceiling being the maXimum valuc ol' the
‘present of the economic benefits available in the form.of the uncondmoml right lo rcduccd contributions (ram the plan. A corrcspondma chargc

has been made to other comprehensive income in the punod
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

.

28.,

) follows

‘Operating lease commitmeints
perd onimutal

AL3I August 2023 thé acadgmy trust h'\d commllmcnh to makc tuturc mmlmum fcase paymcnts under non-canccllable opcrauno leases as

'Laml al;d Tiuildirpgs
Wuhln ! year

Belwecn 1 and 5 years:
*After more thai 5 ¥c1rs

Other-
Witiin 1 year
Between 1and S years

2023 2022
£000, +£000
2,221 1.933
8,885 7,732
15,575° 14,606 .
26,681 24,270
2023 2022
. £000 £000
193 40
69

474

Included in the dbOVC is an annual ch.u'gu of £2 22 Ik (2022 - £1 432k) which rclmcs to the commltmcnl for 1hc buildings which are p:lri ofa

PH nmmgcmcn( *
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29.

30.

Members® liability

Each member of the charitable company underiakés to éontribulc 1o the asscts of the company in thic cvent of it being wound up while he/she is a
member, or within one year afier he/she ceases (o be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities
contracted before he/she ceases to bs a member. ’

Related party transactions

Owing to the naturc of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trusices being drawn from local public and privaic sector

-organisations, transaciions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All iransaciions involving such

organisations arc conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or
afler 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement
pracedures relating 1o connected and related party lransactions, The follewing related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Related. Party Transaction
East Durham College — a company in which Ms Suzanne Duncan (a trustec) is the Chief Exccutive Officer:

¢ East Durham. Colingc have delivered aliesative education for a number of vulnerable students mecting their specific need and tailored o
the student’s wellbeing and outcomes, The total value of the transactions were £nil (2022 £37.500) durng the pcnod There were no
amounts outstanding at 31 Au;,usl 2023 (2022: £nil)

e The academy trust sought various provisions to best meet students’ needs and specifically chose East Durham College, because of its
failored faciliiics to support these students.

» Inentering into the transaction, the academy trust has complicd with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook,

*  ‘The clement above £2,500 has been provided *at no moré than cost’ and East Durham College has provided a statemént of assurance
conhfirming this.

GLI (Leisure Services Newcastle) — a company in which Mr Christopher Roberts (vice chair of trust) is a trustee:

e GLI are a charitable organisation ihat are responsible for running the leisure services of Newcastle City Council. Ilillon Academy is
situated in the borough of Neweastle City Council and it is a Statulory requirement that all primary schools provide swimming classes lor
their students. The total value of the transactions were £4,080 (2022: £3,600). There were no amounts outstanding at 3t August 2023
(2022: £nil),

<o« The trust has undertaken an exercise which has been shared with all frustees, which established that there were no other feasible options

for Hilton Academy to take their students swimming in the borough of Neweastle The trust looked at a nuimber of private leisure clubs,
which required a (ar more expensive membership per student Trustees were satisfied (hat the value for maney elements had been satisfied
and that Christopher Roberts himself had a small enough yoting right, not to be influential in the decision-making process,

Farringdon Community Academy — & school in which Ms Suzanne Duncan (a irusiec) is a inember of the governing body

e Farringdon Community Academy is a school in the borvugh of Sunderland City Council, Farringdon Community Academy sre the lead
school for the Sunderland sports partnership. Each school in Sunderland are réquired to pay a £50 fee to join the sports purlm.rshnp The
toiaf value of the transactions were £nil (2022: £50). There were no amounts outstanding at 31 August 2023 (2022: £nil)

North East Learning Trust — a company in which Suzanne Duncan {trustee) is a trustee

o North East Learning trusst is a charitable organisation and a multi academy trust. They provide the funding fof School Led nitial T'cacher
“Fraining (SCITT) “Fhe SCITT cnables graduates (0 undenake their training within a school environment, leading to Quatified Teacher
Training Status.

*  During the year, Red House Academy reeruited one graduate that was eligible fur support uitder the SCITT scheme,

e The trust received £1,100 from Norh East Leaming Trust in respect of support for the cligible graduate in order to complete their
Qualified Teacher Training Status. There were no amounts ouistanding at 31 August 2023 (2022; £nil)
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‘NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST‘
(A company hmltcd by guurantee)

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TH E YEAR ENDED 31 AUCUST 2023

30. TRela'tcdﬂpar_ty transactions (¢ontinaed)

M Delta Acader ics Trust —a [

pany in which My Robérl Tarn’s {(Accounting Officer and trustee) Sxmllcr is Accounting Officer and a Trustee:

. Delta Acadernics Trust is a charitable’ orgamsauon and a mulu acadery trust in the north of England,

. During the year Delta Academies. Trust hosted a two-day conference for large multi academy trusts, the fees paid were the delegate day
raies and accommadation fees that the trust reimbursed Delta Academies Trust for. The total value of the transactions were £2,010
(2022:,£nil). There wére no amounts outstanding at:31 August 2023 (2022; £nil)

_"Schools Norlh East-a company i in which Ms Jo Heaton (a trustee) is a trustee of the co{npzmy:

. Schools North East is a company thatis a school led regional network and is the only of its kind in the Uk ..

. The ainy of the organisation is L6 create a unique culture of colluboration and muwal support amongsl North East Schools to ensuré the
best possible outcomes for all of the regions young people.

. During the year Northern Education. Trust paid subscription fées to Schools Norih East to be part of the family of North East Schools

that collaborate and be well informed of local educational mslghls The total value of the transactions werc £3,962 (2022: £nit). Thete
were no amounts. outstanding at 3l Augml 2023 (2022: £nil) ~

‘Harbour Lcurmng Trust - a company in which Mr Crarclh Edmunds is scconded to as Accounting Officer:

. ‘Harbour Learning Trust is a charitable orgamsnnon and a nulti academy Lrust.

. During the year the trust reccived £164,427 (2022;, £nit) for satacy rcchargcs for stal sv..condcd to Harbour Lcammg 'lrust /\L 31
August 2023 £89,292 (2022: nil) was oulslandmz,

i(iclclur Obscrvalory -a company mn which Mr 'l'oni Gricv&:son {Decpuiy Chairand irustee) is u trusice of the company;

. Kicldér Obscrvatory is public asiroriomical obscrvmur) located in Northumberland.

e During the year NET students visited Klelder Observatory, ai no cost to the Trust, and the Trusi received £1 11 (20222 Enil) For
reimbursement of travel Costs. There were no ariiounts outstanding at 31 August 2023 (2022: £qil)

31. l’_osf bn!:_u.lce she?:t_ évcnu

On st Scptember 2023 Farringdon Community Academy transferred into the lrust. The financial impact of this transaction is currcnlly‘
unknown as the building and pension valuatigns are currently oulslandmg, '

32, Agency arrangements

Thé trusi administers the disbursement of the new discretionary suppurl for lcarners, 16-19 Bursary Fuuds, on behalf off the ESFA. Iin the § ycar it
reccived £56k (2022 - £47k) and disbursed £15k (2022 - £16k) from the fuid,.An amount of £115k (2022 = £74k} is included in other creditors
relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA. The trust retained a beneficial interest in individual transaclions such that ILSS than £1k
has been recognised in income and expenditure in the statgment o[‘ financial aclivities -
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